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8710 N

Southaven, MS 38671

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN

Top of Mississippi

srthwest Drive Phone: 662.393.6939

Fax: 662.303.7204

March 4, 2020

"To the Honorable Mayor,
Board of Aldermen and
Citizens of the City of Southaven, MS

The Department of Finance and Administration is pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
“CAFR”) of the City of Southaven, Mississippi, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. The accompanying
financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). These financial statements are also prepared and presented in conformity with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) Statement #34 — Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.

Responsibility for both accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with Management. Management believes that the enclosed data is accurate in all material Tespects
and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and the results of operation s of the City,
or: a Government-wide and Fund basis. Note disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City’s financial activities have been included (see pages 42 through 66).

Pursuant to Section 21-35-31 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, an audit of the financial statements has been completed
by the City’s independent Certified Public Accountant, Fortenberry and Ballard, PC. Their report is included on page
14. The independent auditors’ report is presented in the financial section of this report. The audit was designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 are
free of material misstaternent. The independent auditors have concluded based upon their audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of Southaven’s financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2019 are fairly presented and conform to GAAP.

iManagement’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is included on pages 18 through 28. The MD&A is a narrative that
introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview of the City’s financial activities. This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A. and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s
MDA can be found immediately following the auditors’ report in the financial section of the report.

(CITY PROFILE

The City of Southaven is a Mississippi municipal corporation located in Desoto County, in the extreme northwest

corner of Mississippi. Southaven is a suburban county in the Greater Memphis area and a member of the Memphis
Metropolitan Statistical Area. Southaven was incorporated on April 15, 1980, and has an estimated population of over
50,000 living within an area of approximately 41.25 square miles. Southaven is the largest municipality in DeSoto
County accounting for roughly 30% of the population and is the 3™ largest municipality in Mississippi.

The City operates under a code charter form of government featuring a Mayor and a seven member Board of Alderman
serving as the elected, governing authority. The policy-making and legislative authority as well as budgetary
responsibilities are vested with the seven member Board of Aldermen. The Mayor is responsible for the day to day

pperations of the city government. All officials are elected to a four vear term. Terms of office begin on July 1,
following the date of election into office.
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The City provides a variety of services including police and fire protection; the construction and maintenance of streets
and other infrastructure; recreational and cultural activities; wastewater sanitation, storm water management; and solid
waste collection. :

ECONOMIC CONDITION

The City is home to roughly 2,500 businesses. The leading employers in Southaven include the DeSoto County Schgol
system, Baptist Memorial Hospital, Future Electronics, and Associated Wholesale Grocers. Southaven has once again
seen healthy growth in the retail sales job market.

With the improvement of the economy nationwide, the City’s unemployment rate (4.3%) is only slightly above the
national average (3.5%), but below the state average (5.4%) as of September 2019. Over the last 10 years the City has
seen a population increase of 15%.

The City has seen consistent increases in sales tax revenues since 2009. The distribution, warehousing and shippgrgng
industry is a growing sector of the City’s economy. The industry benefits from close proximity to Memphis and ease: of
access to the Memphis International Airport as well as to the Mississippi River. Retail also continues to grow at a rapid
pace. The City anticipates continued growth in sales tax revenues in the years to come.

Property value assessments for 2020 are approximately $54 million higher than in 2019. This is due to an increase in
new construction coupled with an increase in property value assessments. New housing permits and business permits
have seen an increase in 2019. The City of Southaven maintained its property tax rate of 43.73 for fiscal years 2019 and
2020.

The City of Southaven has seen explosive population growth over the past two decades. Between 1990 and 2010, the
number of people living in the area increased by 173 percent. The 2018 Census estimate puts the City’s population at
54,944, a 12.2 percent growth since 2010. Southaven is a relatively young city with approximately 36% of the
population being under 25 and approximately 32% of the City’s population being between the ages of 25-44,

According to the 2010 US Census, the median household income was §54,751. The median value of owner-occupied
homes from 2014-2018 was $143,800.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with

revenues being recorded when available and measurable, and expenditures being recorded when the liability is incurfed.
Proprietary operations are maintained on a full accrual basis.

Internal Control

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensjire
that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data jare
compiled to allow for the presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structire
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the costs of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2)the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Controls

The City maintains specific budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.
Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Enterprise Funds are included i ‘the
annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legglly
exceed the appropriated amount) is at the fiund level, except for the General Fund which is at the department level. Any
amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of a department require Council approval. The government also
maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City’s enterprise operations comsist of the Utility Fund and Sanitation Fund. The Utility fund accounts for
traditional water and sewer revenues and expenditures to construct and maintain the water and sewer system. The
Sanitation fund accounts are for rubbish and recycling services, of which both are outsourced to a third party.

DEBT

Mississippi law limits the amount of general obligation debt a municipality may issue to 15% of total assessed
valuation. Southaven’s total assessed valuation is $612,370,809: therefore, the 15% limitation equals $91,855,621.
After reduction for GO Bonds outstanding of $38,401,000, the City’s remaining margin for further debt issuance is
$53,454,621.

Southaven has a very solid bond rating of AA-, as rated by Standard & Poor. This rating, which is the equivalent of
Aa3, indicates the strong capacity the City has to meet its financial commitments and a stable financial outlook.

Southaven has previously taken advantage of the favorable bond rating by restructuring some of the debt in order to
reduce future debt service.

For more detailed information on the City’s debt refer to Note 7 on page 53 of this Ieport.
FUTURE INITTIATIVES

Over the course of the next several years, the City plans to continue infrastructure projects including but not limited to
the widening of Getwell Road from Church Road south to Star Landing Road and extending Nail Road. Engineering
work has already begun on these projects. Land has been secured for a fifth fire station. This project is expected to
begin in 2021 at the latest. Construction has begun on the expansion of water/fire services. The City has also continued
to comimit over $1 million annually to the maintenance and repair of existing municipal streets and drainage systems.

A “Penny for Your Parks” tourism tax was reinstated in fiscal year 2018 which implemented a 1% tax on the gross
proceeds of Southaven’s restaurants. The money from these taxes will be used for projects such as eight soccer fields at
Snowden Grove Park Complex, other improvements and enhancements at Snowden Park, and a walking/running track
at Central Park. An indoor softball training facility at Greenbrook Park Complex is under construction and should be
complete in 2020. Some other smaller projects and improvements will be funded through the tax.

The City has also begun an $850,000 project to make a walk/bike trail connecting Central Park and Snowden Grove
Park. The monies are from a federal grant from Mississippi Department of Transportation. This project will improve
the walkability in our city and promote healthy lifestyles. Renovations to City Hall began in fiscal year 2019 with an
anticipated completion date in 2020.

There are several prospective industrial/manufacturing businesses looking to relocate to Southaven. IDI is expanding
ithe Stateline Road Business Park. The Freeburg site on Pepperchase Drive is also expanding. This is in anticipation of
igrowth in the industrial/manufacturing industry in Southaven.

]
i

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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‘fl“he Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City of Southaven for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018. This was the fourth year that the government has received this prestigious award. In order
'0 be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and efficiently organized
CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal Tequirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only., We believe that our current CAFR. continues to
toeet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

-
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The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Departmentjof
Finance and Administration. I also wish to express my appreciation to all other City departments for their cooperation
in providing information for this report and all others who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this repgrt.
Special thanks are extended to the Southaven Mayor and Board of Alderman for their continued support and for
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Southaven’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,
T W Hwane

Edi Mcliwain, CPA
Finance Director
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Mayor
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Joel Gallagher, Ward 4 John David Wheeler, Ward 5 Raymond Flores, Ward 6
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City Attormey
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FORTENBERRY&BALLARD“‘P,” C
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Southaven, Mississippi

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Southaven, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Southaven,
Mississippi’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

18929 SPILLWAY ROAD, SUITE B
BRANDON, MISSISSIPPI 32047
TELEPHONE 601-292-5292 FAX 601-992-2033
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
‘basis for our audit opinions.

/Opinions
§In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
;Ethe respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Southaven, Mississippi,
as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applica-
ble, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules and correspond-
ing notes, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the
Schedule of City’s Contributions and the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPER Liability and
Related Ratios on pages 18-28 and 68-78, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
'economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
%isupplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
'United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
E)repaﬂng the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
:Evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

i

iOther Supplementary Information and Other Information

i
i

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
%{:ollectively comprise the City of Southaven, Mississippi’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, budgetary schedules, the other schedule, and statistical section, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
istatements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title
2 U.S. Code if Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
PPrinciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The budgetary schedules, the other schedule, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
inderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such

15
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information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
4, 2020, on our consideration of the City of Southaven, Mississippi’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Southaven,
Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering City of Southaven, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

7%1(//&43(:;(&7 ﬁ{ By LLAAD, FC

Fortenberry & Ballard, PC Certified Public Accountants
March 4, 2020 '
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year End September 30, 2019
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

As management of the City of Southaven (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furmished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $46,838,389 (total net position). There were bond proceeds, from::
prior years that were not expended in the current year causing the increase in net position.

» The government’s total net position increased by $401,429 mainly due to higher revenues in the Sanitation
fund.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balance of
$17,614,816 an increase of $1,016,011 in comparison with the prior year. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $11,897,262, or 24 percent of total general fund
expenditures for the fiscal year,

e  The City’s total debt decreased by $9,536,370 (12.1%) during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this
decrease is no new debt issued i the current year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two different
views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains required supplementary information, supplementary information and
other information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City.

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Pages 31 and 32) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial:
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City’s financial status.

The next statements (Pages 33 and 35) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of
the individual parts of the City government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide
statements. There are two patts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; and 2) the
proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail
some of the data contained in those statements.

Required Supplementary Information

After the notes, required supplementary information is provided to show budgetary information required by
Governmiental Accounting Standards Board for the General Fund and the Tourism and Convention Fund.
Additionally, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the WNet Pension Liability, the Schedule of the City’s
Contributions and the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios are included in this
section.
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Supplementary Information

Additionally, a Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budgetary Basis — Budget and
Actual are presented for the Bond Funded Capital Project Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Enterprise Funds
can be found in this report.

QOther Schedules

Additionally, a Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials and a Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards
can be found in this section of the report.

Government-wide Financial Statements

_ [The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a whole. These statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,

The two government-wide statements report the City’s met position and how it has changed. Net position is the
difference between the City’s total assets, deferred outflows of resources, total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) business-type
activities. The govemmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public safety, parks and
recreation, and general administration. Property tax and sales tax finance most of these activities. The business-
type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer and
sanitation services offered by the City.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 31 and 32 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities in Mississippi, uses fund accounting to ensure
and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of City can be
divided into two categories: govemnmental funds and proprietary funds.

§§(}evernmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
ipctivities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic services are accounted for in
ggovemmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what
imonies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are Teported
ising an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a
result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City’s programs. The relationship
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
povernmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

‘The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates
input from the management of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to
pay for them. If also authorizes the City to obtain fimds from identified sources to finance these current period
activities. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the
original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources,
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charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4} the difference or variance between the
final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of
accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities is
shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds — The City has one type of proprietary fund.
Enterprise Funds ate used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer and for its samitation
operations. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Staterment of
Net Pogition and the Statement of Activities.
Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements begin on page 42 of this report. :

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The City of Southaven’s Net Position

Figure 1
Governmental Activities Business-’ Activities Tomals
ASSETS 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets 3 50, 0,758 467 8 46,005,301 5 31, 864 388 § 31,619,808 3 82622855 § 77,625109
Capital assets, net 92,693,047 97,421 335 41,113,078 42,081,117 133,806,125 139,502,452
Total assets 143,451,514 143,426,636 72,977,466 73,700,925 216,428,980 217,127,561
DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 6,713,067 5,953,798 764,606 545,202 7477,673 6,799,000
LIABILITIES
Current Liablities 11,635,682 10,369,167 4,939,663 4,642,861 16,575,345 15,012,028
Long term debt outstanding 32,280,892 39,259,251 28,507,874 31,237,592 60,788,766 70,496,883
Other post employment beneftt hiability 6,669,917 4,703,575 - - 6,669,917 4,703,575
Net pension liablity 57,292,734 52,845,308 3,354,996 3,065,259 60,687,730 55,910,567
Total Habilities 107,879,225 107,177,341 36,842,533 38,945,712 144,721,758 146,123,053
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 32,196,868 31,118,776 149,638 247,772 32,346,506 31,366,548
NET POSITION .
Net investrment in capital assets 54,716,317 53,695,632 10,536,245 8,804,009 65,252,562 62,589,641
Restricted 4,696,226 1,589,010 2,696,553 2,622,213 7,392,779 4.211,223
Unrestricted {49,324,055)  (44,200,325) 23,517,103 23,836,421 (25,806,952)  (20,363,504)
Total net position 3§ 10088488 § 11,084,317 $ 36749901 § 35,352,643 $ 46,838,389 § 46,436,960

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a govemment’s financial condition.
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Southaven exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $46,838,389, as of September 30, 2019.

The largest portion of net position, $65,252,562 is reflected in the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for.
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt,
the Tesources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to
liquidate these Habilities.
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An additional portion of the City’s net position (14.5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. There is a deficit of $25,806,952 in unrestricted net position due to recording of
unfunded pension liabilities under GASB 68 and the liability from the other postemployement benefits under GASB
75. Please refer to note 10.

Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations influenced the total unrestricted governmental net
position:

e Increased property tax collections of approximately $2,600,000.

* Increased sales tax revenues of approximately $300,000 which is normal growth.

*  Grant money received increased approximately $800,000 in the current fiscal year as approximately
$250,000 more was received for the SAFER grant. Some one time grants from the state of approximately
$750,000 was received in fiscal year 2019.

» Sale of a piece of land for approximately $1,900,000

»  Operating expense increased by approximately $2,000,000.

s  The increase in net position is approximately $400,000.
« Continued low cost of debt due to the City’s high bond rating.
City of Southaven’s Changes in Net Position
Figure 2 ‘
Gomrmmental Activities Business- Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for services § 11,083,556 % 8,903,428 3 15253703 % 15,166,702 5 26,337,259 8§ 24,070,130
Capital grants 2,544,459 1,798,142 - -~ 2,544,459 1,798,142
Totnl program revenues 13,628,015 10,701,570 15,253,703 15,166,702 28,881,718 25,868,272
Ceneral Revenues
Property taxes 29,150,188 26,520,649 - - 29,150,188 26,520,649
Sales tax 15,148,749 14,846,481 - - 15,148,749 14,845,481
Other generalrevenues 2713226 2,384,202 248,824 352219 2,962,050 2736421
Total general revenues 47,012,163 43,751,332 248.824 352,21% 47,260,987 44,103,551
Total Revenues 60,640,178 54,452,902 15,502,527 15,518,921 76,142,705 69,971,823
EXPENSES
General govemment 23,494,565 24,320,842 - - 23,494,565 24,329,842
Public safety 21,603,119 21,004,797 - - 21,603,119 21,004,797
Public works 1457365 7,000,264 - - 7457365 7000264
Culture and recreation 7,304,862 6,773,184 - - 7,304,862 6,773,184
Economic development 285,738 421,983 - - 285,738 421,983
Health and welfare 321,995 285,355 - - 321,995 289,355
[nterest on long term debt 1,168,363 1,324,816 - - 1,168,363 1,324,816
Water and Sewer - - 11,189,945 13,830,697 11,189,945 11,830,697
Saniation - - 2915324 2,879,974 2,915,324 2,879.974
Total expenses 61,636,007 61,144,241 14,105,269 14,710,671 75,741,276 75,854,912
Change in net position (955,820) (6,691,339) 1397258 808,250 401,425 (5,883.089)
Net Position-Beginning of Year 11,084,317 22,077,571 35,352,643 34,544,393 46,436,960 56,621,964
Prior period adjustment - (4,301,915) - - - 4,301,915)
Net Position-End of Year § 10,088488 3 11,084,317 $ 36,749.901 § 35352643 § 468383892 S 46,436,960

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $995,829. Key elements of
this decrease are as follows:
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Governmental Activities Expenses are broken out by department as follows

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $1,397,258. Key elements of]
this increase are as follows:
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s  General government expenses only increased by approximately $500,000.
»  Sale of land increased revenues by approximately $335,000

» Property taxes were up by approximately $2,600,000 (10%) in. total.

Chart1

Governmental Expenditures

1% 2%

B General Govt

= Public Safety

= Public Works

B Parks-& Recreation

® Economic Development
1% Health & Welfare

& Interest on Debt

s  Charges for services remained relatively static in the water and sewer fund in the current fiscal year. There
was no fee increase so a nominal increase was expected. Charges for services increased approximately
$200,000 in the sanitation fund due to more users from natural growth in the current year.

» Maintenance and servicing expenses decreased approximately $600,000 in the Water and Sewer fund and;
increased approximately $35,000 in the Sanitation fund.

»  General revenues decreased approximately $100,000 mainly due a large increase in interest income as a;
result of higher interest rates on deposits coupled with a decrease in miscellaneous revenues. The change in;
net position increased from prier year by approximately $1,000,000.
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Business type revenues compared to expenses are as follows:

Chart 2
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Financial Analysis of the City of Southaven’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. : '

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of uvsable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements.  Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was $11,897,262, while total fund balance reached $12,507,499. As a measure of the
seneral fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
ind expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 24 percent of total General Fund expenditures.

At September 30, 2019, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of $17,614,816, a 6.1
percent increase over last year. Included in this change in fund balance are increases in fund balance in the General
Fund and Debt Service Fund and a decrease in the Bond Funded Capital Projects Fund and the Tourism and
Convention Fund.

The General Fund fund balance increase was mainly due to an increase in property taxes caused by an increase in
assessment and the sale of a piece of land for $2,500,000. The increase in expenditures was approximately
$2,910,000 overall. The Tourism and Convention Fund decreased due to the expending of prior year bond note
money being spent on specified projects. The Bond Funded Capital Project Fund decreased due to the remaining
amount of the prior year $6 million bond issuance in which the most of the remainder of the money was expended in
the current fiscal year. The Debt Service Fund increased due to the City collecting slightly more taxes than
payments.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions.
Senerally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that
are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to
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recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in
appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Revenues were more than the budgeted amounts primatily because property tax and sales tax revenues received
were greater than originally anticipated. Expenditures increased from prior fiscal year primarily due to the City’s
inereased spending on street maintenance and drainage improvements/maintenance in the cwrrent year. A large
portion of the overlay expense is included in the General Government Fund. General government expenditures
increased approximately $3,000,000 and capital outlay increased approximately $1,200,000. The remaining funds’
expenditures decreased by approximately $2,500,000.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Utility Fund at the end of the fiscal year is
$21,658,924, and for the Sanitation Fund is $1,858,179. The total growth in net position for the Utility fund was
$1,397,094, and total increase in net position in the Sanitation fund was $164. Other factors concerning the finances
of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30,
2019, totals $133,806,125 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, roads and bridges,
land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions and disposals:

e Vehicles purchased in current fiscal year; $333,000 for new police cars, $30,000 for public works, $86,000
for parks and recreation, $215,000 for utility.

» Machinery and equipment purchased in the current fiscal year: $150,000 in computers, $243,000 in lawn
equipment and other equipment for parks, $368,000 in police and firefighting equipment (including
emergency radios), $256,000 for heavy machinery for the public works department and §67,000 for heavy
machinery for the utility and sanitation departments.

o  Emergency services radios for police, approximately $71,000.

« Disposal of vehicles, approximately $380,000 in governmental activities. Disposal of police building,
approximately $674,000

s  There was an additional $4,307,946 added to CIP in governmental activities roads, park projects, and utility,
infrastructure. :
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The City of Southaven’s Capital Assets

Figure 3
Governmental Activities Business- Activities Totals

2019 2018 2013 2018 2019 2018
L3 8047521 § 9,376,445 b 579036 § 579,036 & R626557 § 9935481
5,002,743 1,772,527 1,077,730 - 6,080,473 1,772,527
108,954,072 108,422,720 64,708,960 64,709,960 173,664,032 173,132,680
61,123,714 61,909,904 381,573 381,573 61,505,287 62291477
678,582 880,615 744,057 744,057 1,422 639 1,624,672
21,798,048 20,851,130 3,349,787 3212043 25,147,835 24,063,173
(112,911,633) {105,792,006) (29,729,065) {27,545,552) (142,640,698)  (133,337,558)
3 92,603,047 8 97,421,335 §  4L113,078 § 42,081,117 § 133,806,125 § 139,502,452
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Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 4 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of September 30, 2019, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $49,421,000. All of this
debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the City’s debt represents bonds secured
solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. revenue bonds), notes payable, and leases payable. '

City of Southaven’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Figure 4
2019 2018
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds 32,670,500 § 37,455,000
Taxincrement bonds 1,725,000 - 2,560,000
Notes payable 4,149,540 5,532,105
Compensated absences 551,569 545,889
Bond premmums 637,858 728,800
Bond discounts - (931)
Governmental activities 39,734,467 § 46,820,863
Business -type activities
General obligation bonds 15,025,500 § 16,325,000
Notes payable 14,664,726 15,833,388
Leases payable 69,010 135,153
Compensated absences 45,636 32,691
Bond prermiurms 1,373,311 1,498,084
Bond discounts (33,276) (36,976)
Business-type activities 31,144907 § 33,787,340
Total Long-Term Debt  § 70,879,374 § 80,608,203

The City’s total debt decreased by $9,728,829 (12.07%) throughout the fiscal year. There was no new debt issued in

the current year.

Mississippi general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 15
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s boundaries. The legal debt

margin for additional debt for the City is $33,454,621.
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see the Chart 3 for the pay down of the current debt.

Chart 3
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Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 on page 56 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City.

* Low unemployment. The City’s unemployment rate of 4.3%, as of September 30, 2019, is below the State
average of 5.4% and slightly above the national average of 3.5%.

* In 2017, Southaven’s population was calculated, according to the United States Census most recent
numbers, to be 54,944. This equates to roughly 30% of the total DeSoto County population and makes
Southaven the 3rd largest city in Mississippi.

» Leading employers in Southaven include the DeSoto County School system, Baptist Memorial Hospital,
Future Electronics and Associated Wholesale Grocers. Southaven has seen rapid growth in the retail sales
- job market and tourism related jobs are continuing to come on line with the growth of Southaven’s
competitive baseball and softball tournaments held annually.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2020
Governmental Activities: Property taxes (benefiting from the economic growth) are expected to increase as the

jassessinent increased in the current year. Sales tax is budgeted at only a slight increase as much shopping has shifted
%go online shopping. The City is generally conservative when budgeting revenues due to unknown economic factors.

The City anticipates a new bond issuance in fiscal year 2020. With this bond issuance, an increase in expenditures
or capital projects is expected. The City also anticipates an increase in police and fire expenditures due to filling the
significant number of open positions.

27




Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, Mississippi

City of Southaven, Mississippi
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Other budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to be relatively similar to the current year. The City
doesn’t anticipate any significant increases in expenditures through the general fund.

Business — type Activities: The water and sewer rates in the City will remain static. General operating expenses
should remnain fairly constant over the next fiscal vear, outside of any inflation that may naturally occur. The City
does not anticipate issuing any more debt in the Utility fund in fiscal year 2020.

The Sanitation fund budgeted and actual expenses should remain relatively similar to fiscal year 2018 with only
slight increases due to natural growth.

Requests for Information
This repott is designed to provide an overview of the City of Southaven’s finances for those with an interest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should

be directed to the Chris Wilson, Chief Administrative Officer/City Administrator or Edi McIlwain, Finance Director
at 662-280-2489.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPP1
1 Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019
Governmental Bustness-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 16,011,493 § 22,034,568 3 38,046,061
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $217,947 713,294 2,344,413 3,057,707
Intergovemmental receivable 1,414,075 - 1,414,075
Franchise tax receivable 528,551 - 528,551
Property tax receivable 25,385,609 - 29,385,609
Other receivable - 3,710 3,710
Prepaid items 610,237 190,129 800,366

Total Current Assets 48,663,259 24,572,820 73,236,079
INon-Current Assets
Restricted assets:

Cash in bank 2,095,208 - 2,095,208
Bean patch receivable - 6,992,471 6,992,471
Note receivable - Hemando - 299,097 259%.,067
Land and other nondepreciable assets 13,050,264 1,656,766 14,707,030
Other capital assets, net

of accumnulated depreciation 79,642,783 39,456,312 119,099,095

Total Non-Curent Assets 94,788,255 48,404,646 143,192,001

Total Assets 143,451,514 72,977,466 216,428,080

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows on refunding 270,260 522,438 792,698
Deferred outflows - OPEB 1,247,062 - 1,247,062
Deferred outflows - pension 5,195,745 242,168 5,437,913
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 6,713,067 764,606 7.477,673
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites
Accounts payable 2,989,585 774,208 3,763,794
Accrued payroll 768,196 64,710 832,906
Customer deposits 261 1,358,555 1,358,816
Accrued interest 424,065 105,156 529,221
Long term lizbilities due in one year - capita debt 6,502,006 2,591,397 9,493,403
Long term lizbilities due in one year - non capital debi 551,559 45,636 597,205
Total qurant Liabilities 11,635,682 4,539,663 16,575,345
Non-Current Liabilites
Long-term Liabilities
Due in more than one year;
Capital debt 32,280,892 28,507,874 60,788,766
Net other post smployment benefit liability 6,669,917 - 6,669,917
Net pension liability 57,292,734 3,394.996 60,687,730
Total Non~-Current Liabilities 96,243 543 31,902,870 128,146,413
Total Liabilities 107,879,225 36,842,533 144,721,758
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property tax for future reporting pedods 29,385,609 - 28,385,609
Deferred inflows - pension 2,811,259 149,638 2,960,897
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,196,868 149,638 32,346,506
NET POSITION
Net jnvestment in capital assets 54,716,317 10,536,245 £5,252,562
Expendable:
Restricted for:

Debt services - 2,696,553 2,696,553

Capital projects 605,530 - 605,530

Parks and recreation 4,050,696 - 4,090,696

Public safety - - -
Unrestricted (49,324,055) 23,517,103 (25,806,952)

Total Net Position §  10.088.488 $ __36.749.90) $_.46.838 180

The notes to the financial statements are 2n integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General government

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Economic development

Health and welfare

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
‘Water and sewer
Sanitation
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Statement of Activities

Net (Expenses) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Capital
Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 23,494,565 $ 4,557,889 $ 1,746,981 $ (17,189,695) % - $(17,185,695)
21,603,119 2,030,338 797,478 (18,775,303) - (18,375,303}
7457365 - - {7,457,365) - (7,457,365)
7,304,862 4,224 956 - (3,079,306) - (3,079,906)
285,738 257,833 - (27,905) - 27,905)
321,995 12,540 - (309,455) - (309.455)
1,168,363 - - (1,168,363} - (1,368,363)
61,636,007 11,083,556 2,544,459 (48,007,992} - (48,007,992)

11,189,945 12,341,493 - - 1,151,548 1,151,548
2,915,324 2,912,210 - - (3,114 (3,114)

14,105,269 15,253,703 - - 1,148,434 1,148,434
§ 75,741,276  § 26,337,259 $ 2,544,459 (48,007,992) 1,148 434 (46,859,558)

General Revennes

Property taxes 29,150,188 - 29,150,188

Sales tax 15,148,749 - 15,148,749

Franchise tax 1,949,995 - 1,945,995

Interest 596,146 190,415 /86,561

Miscellaneous 167,085 58,409 225,494

Total General Revenues 47,012,163 248,824 47 260,987

Change in Net Position (995,829) 1,397,258 401,429

Net Position-Beginning 11,084,317 35,352,643 46,436,960

Net Position-End $§ 10,088,488 $36,749,901 $ 46,838,389

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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ASSET{Sg

Cash a‘ﬁd cash equivalents

Accm@ts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $217,047

Interggvernmental receivabie

Franclise tax receivable

Proper
Prepai
Due fin
Restri¢

To

tax receivable
items
m other funds
ed cash

Assets

LIABIL

TIES

Accoug:ts payable
Accrued payroll

Depos
Due to

Tots

Is
other funds

| Liabilities

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

i

Unavajlable revenue - property taxes

Total

FUND E

deferred inflows of resources

ALANCES

Nonspen

fable:

Prepaid items
Restricted:
Debtservice
Parks§ and recreation projects
Capital projects
TUnassigned

Totg
Totd
of

The 1

Fund Balances
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
Resources and Fund Balances

September 30, 2019
Bond Funded Debt Tourism and Total
General Capital Project Service Convention Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 11,502,467 $ - $ 411,091 § 4,097,935 § 16,011,493
713,294 - - - 713,204
1,200,851 51,863 - 161,361 1,414,075
528,551 - - - 528,551
22,753,021 - 6,632,588 - 28,385,609
610,237 - - - 610,237
621,872 - - - 921,872
597,880 1,497,328 - - 2,095,208
$ 38,828,173 § 1,545,191 § 7,043,679 3 4,259,296 5 51,680,339
§ 2,795,196 b 21,789 3 - 5 168,600 § 2,989,585
768,196 - - - 768,196
261 - - - 261
- 621,872 - - 921,872
3,567,653 543,661 - 168,600 4,679,914
22,753,021 - 6,632,588 - 29,385,609
22,753,021 - 6,632,588 - 29,385,609
610,237 - - - 610,237
- - 411,091 - 411,091
- - - 4,090,696 4,090,696
- 605,530 - - 605,530
11,897,262 - - - 11,897,262
12,507,499 605,530 411,091 4,090,696 17,614,816
5 38,828,173 $ 1,549,191 $ 7,043,679 3 4,259,296 § 51,680,339

otes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPFPI
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resoutces
and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land 8,047,521
Construction in progress 5,002,743
Buildings and improvements 61,123,714
Equipment and vehicles 21,798,048
Infrastructure 108,954,072
Leased equipment 678,582
Accumulated depreciation (112,911,633)

Deferred outflows of resources are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds

Net pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and not reported in

the funds:
General pension

Other post-employment benefit lizbilities are not due and payable in the current period and

not reported in the funds:
General other post-employment benefits

Deferred inflows of resources are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are excluded from the governmental funds

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the fiunds, Those liabilities consist of:
Notes payable (4,149,540)
General obligation and revenue bonds (34,395,500)
Accrued interest (424,065)
Boend premium {637,858)
Compensated absences (551,569)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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17,614,816

92,693,047

6,713,067

(57,292,734)

(6,609,917)

(2,811,259)

(40,158,532)

10,088,488
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Mo

REVENUES

Gener, ;:,1 property taxes
Sales fax

Licendes and permits
Intergdvernmental
Charggs for services
Fines ¥

Franc];%ise taxes
Rents i/

Grant proceeds
Interest
Miscellaneous

it

Tota%gtz Revenues
EXPENDITURES
it

Generéé government
Publici Eafety
Pubiicéiworks

Culturg and recreation
Health and welfare

Tourisin and convention

Capital outlay

Debt sgrvice:
Principal
Tntérest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)

Sale ofiassets

Total

ther Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances
IH

]
Fund @aiances - Beginning of Year

1

Fund Balances - End of Year

Bond Funded Debt Tourism and Total
General Capital Project Service Convention Governmenta)
Fund - Fund Fund Fund Funds

§ 21,988,885 b - 3 7,161,302 b - § 29,150,187
15,148,749 - - - 15,148,749
843,659 - - - 843,659
969,169 348,054 - 2,201,191 3,518,414
3,747,832 - - 257,832 4,005,664
2,426,193 - - - 2,426,193
1,949,993 - - - 1,949,995
637,679 - - - 637,679
1,581,405 - - - 1,581,405
511,634 84,513 - - 596,147
167,085 - - - 167,085
49,972,285 432,567 7,161,302 2,459,023 60,025,177
16,205,652 - - - 16,205,652
22,366,428 - - - 22,366,428
2,434,849 - - - 2,434,849
5,532,914 - - - 5,532,914
348,355 - - - 348,355

- - - 285,737 285,737
2,523,897 1,127.332 - 2,405,536 6,056,765
- - 5,755,595 1,246,470 7,002,065

- - 1,167,557 129,479 1,297,036
49,412,095 1,127,332 6,923,152 4,067,222 61,529,801

560,190 (694,765) 238,150 (1,608,199} (1,504,624)
2,520,635 - - - 2,520,635
2,520,635 - - - 2,520,635
3,080,825 (694,765) 238,150 (1,608,199) 1,016,011
9,426,674 1,300,295 172,941 5,698,895 16,598,805
§ 12,507,499 5 605,530 § 411,091 & 4,090,696 § 17,614,816

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 5

Ammounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays of $5,863,979 were less than depreciation expense of $8,414,598.

In the Statement of Activities, only gains or losses from the sale of capital
assets are reported, whereas in the Governmental Funds, proceeds from the sale
of capital assets increases financial resources.

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Some items are reported in the Statement of Activities relating to the continuation
of GASB 68 are not reported in the governmental funds. These activities include:
Recording of pension expense for the current period
Recording retirement contributions made during the fiscal year;

Before the measurement date

Subsequent to the measurement date

Some items are reported in the Statement of Activities relating to the continuation
of GASB 75 are not reported in the governmental funds. These activities include:
Recording of other post-employment benefits expense for the current period

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds. This is the amount by which the increase/(decrease) is

Compensated absences payable

Amortization of bond discounts/(premiums)
Deferred outflow on refunding amortization
Change in accrued interest payable

Rounding difference

1,016,01

(2,550,619)

(2,177,669

7,002,065

(6,999,264

2.531,83
864,92

(721,607

(5,68
90,01

(45,037
(806

!

e N N

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities b

(995,82

7

[’

The notes to the financial statements are integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPY
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2019
Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents £ 20,048,850 $ 1,985,708 § 22,034,568
Accounts receivable, net of allowance

for dE ubtfil accounts $234,921 1,894,951 449462 2,344,413
Other feceivable 2,878 832 3,710
Prepaié}s 154,278 35,851 190,129
Total Gurrent Assets 22,100,967 2,471,853 24,572,820

Noncurrént Assets
Bean Pg'atch receivable 6,992,471 - 6,892,471
Notes gjeceivable - Hernando 299,097 - 299,097
Land and other nondepreciable asssts . 1,656,766 - 1,656,766
Other ¢apital assets, net of

ace i ulated depreciation 39,256,105 200,207 39,456,312
Total ;_Eoncurrent Assets 48,204,439 200,207 48,404,646
Total zﬂssets 70,305,406 2,672,060 72,977 466

DEFER’EéED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferrgd outflows on refunding 522,438 - 522,438
Defen‘gd outflows - pension 217,246 24,922 242,168
Total ]%eferred Outfows of Resources 739,684 24,922 764,606
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
" Accongts payable 544,164 230,045 774,209
Accruqid payroll 60,763 3,947 64,710
Accrugd interest 105,156 - 105,156
Custo ;er deposits 1,358,555 - 1,358,555
Long term liabilities due in one year - capital debt 2,591,397 - 2,591,397
Long term liabilities due in one year - non capital debt 40,170 5,466 45,636
Total Gurrent Liabilities 4,700,205 239,458 4,939,663
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year:
Capitalidebt 28,507,874 - 28,507,874
Net pegision liability 3,016,698 378,298 3,394,996
Total Long-Term Liabilities 31,524,572 378,298 31,902,870
Total Biabilities 36,224,777 617,756 36,842,533
DEFERBED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferréd inflows - pension 128,798 20,840 149,638
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 128,798 20,840 149,638
NET POBITION
Net investment in capital assets 10,336,038 200,207 10,536,245
Restricted for:

Debtif?ervice 2,696,553 - 2,696,553
Umestﬁgcted 21,658,924 1,858,179 23,517,103
Total Net Position £ 34,691,515 § 2058386 3 36.749.901

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, .
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPP]
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel

Supplies

Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and other
Professional services

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income
Interest expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss)

Net Position - Beginning of Year
Net Position - End of Year

Utility Sanitation

Fund Fund Total
12,341,493 $ 2,912,210 $ 15,253[703
57,469 940 58[409
12,398,962 2,913,150 15,312)112
2,317,951 167,819 2,485.770
827,580 1,710 829,290
2,199,211 52,373 2,251,584
3,934,242 - 3,934.242
1,023,213 2,693,422 3,716,635
10,302,197 2,915,324 13,217,521
2,096,765 (2,174) 2,0945591
188,078 2,338 190416
(887,749) - (887,749)
(699,671) 2,338 (697.333)
1,397,094 164 1,397.258
33,294,421 2,058,222 35,3521643
34,691,515 $ 2,058,386 $ 36,749901

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds |

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 [

Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
i :
Cé%sh received from customers 8 12,434,641 § 2,900,452 15,335,103
Céfsh payments for goods and services (5,675,355) (2,689,327) (8,364,682)
C: h payments to employess (2,066,097} (137,810) (2,203,907}
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 4,693,189 73,325 4,766,514
E
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITATL, AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Pa%zments for capital acquisitions, net {1,359,514) - (1,359,514)
P : cipal payments on debt (2,534,305) - (2,534,305)
rest payments on debi (887,749) - (887,749)
B et Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital and Related Financing Activities {4,781.,568) - (4,781,568)
;
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
!
P ﬁ ents received on notes, nat 647,981 - 647,581
Reeeipts of interest 188,078 2,338 190,416
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 836,059 2,338 838,357
i
i\f[et Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cagh Equivalents 747,680 75,663 823,343
it
Casﬁ and Cash Equivalents-Beginning of Year 19,301,180 1,910,046 21,211,226
Rounding difference - (1) [
Casgi and Cash Equivalents-End of Year 3 20,048;880 3 T085 708 T 22034368

i

i
Reciénciliaﬁon of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By (Used In’

i

Operating Activities .
Opgiéating Income (Loss) 3§ 2,096,765 3 2,174y  § 2,094,591
i
A;&%‘usﬁnenis to reconcile operating income (loss) fo net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,199,211 52,373 2,251,584
Change in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows:
(Increase) decrease in customer receivables {47.682) (12,688) (60,370}
(Increase) decrease in prepaids {7,310} (1,540y (8,850)
(Increase) decrease in deferred ocutflows 31,817 3,676 35,493
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 116,990 7,345 124,335
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 4,785 (2,964) 1,821
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 83,361 - 83,361
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows (88,010) (10,124) (98,134)
Increase (decrease) ic net pension liability 295,783 33,954 329,737
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 7,479 5,467 12,946
Totd] adjustments ' 2,596,424 75,499 2,671,923
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 693, 3 73,325 $ 4,766,514

The hotes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent
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CITY OF SOﬁTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General Statement

The City of Southaven (the “City™) was incorporated in 1980. The City operated under the Board of Aldermen-
Mayor form of government and provides the following services; public safety (police and fire), public works (streets
and improvements), culture, recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, economic development, and
general administrative services.

The City complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accounting framework and the inore significant
accounting policies are discussed in subsequent sections of this note.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by
applying the criteria set forth in generally accepted accounting principles. The basic — but not the only — criterion
for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the goveming body’s ability to exercise
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other
manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of
governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of
public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government
and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is
generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or
exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City of Southaven has no component units.

C. Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities. They
include all funds of the financial reporting entity with the exception of any fiduciary funds. These statements
distingnish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernimental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of governmental activities and business-type
activities at year end. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
program. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revemies are reported instead as general revenues. Indirect expenses are
allocated to general government.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Fund Financial Statements

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial
management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and
proprietary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial
statements; all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in 2 single column.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The
measureraent focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources. The
City has presented the following major governmental funds:

General Fund:

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial resources not
accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and
capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Bond Funded Capital Project Fund:

This fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
gexpenditm'e from capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital
jassets.

|
Debt Service Fund:

%
H

This is a fund that is used to account for the payment of principal and interest on the City’s outstanding
igovernmental debt.

Tourism and Convention Fund:

This fund is used to account for a tourism tax used to fund parks “growth” (expansion/improvements).

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position, and cash flow. All
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of
Net Position. The City has presented the following major proprietary fimds:

Utility Fund:

The Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the City.
Activities of the fund mclude administration, operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system, as well as
billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
long-term principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility
customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the funds.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Sanitation Fund:

The Sanitation Fund is used to account for the provision of sanitation services to the residents of the City. Activities
of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of sanitation services, as well as billing and
collection activities.

Proprietary funds distingnish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of
personal and contractual services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of
the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement
focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources are included on the Statement of Net Position and the operating statements present increases
{revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned, including unbilled water and sewer services which are accrued. Expenses are recognized
at the time the Hability is mcurred. '

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 33. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become
both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
cutrent period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. A
two month availability period is used for recognition of all other Government Fund revenues. Expenditures are
recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, except for interest
payable accrued at the debt issuance date for which cash is received with the debt proceeds, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences are recorded only when payment has matured and will be payable shortly after
year-end.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for services, interest income
and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the government
are also recognized as revenue. All other governmental fund revenues are recognized when received, as they are
generally not meagurable or available until actually received.

E. Budpets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

The City Charter establishes the fiscal year as the twelve-month period beginning October 1. The departments
submit to the City Clerk a budget of estimated expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year after which the City Clerk
submits a budget of estimated expenditures and revenues to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen by August 1.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
E Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

i
{
if
{
§
i
5[
'E

frUpon receipt of the budget estimates, the Board of Aldermen holds a public hearing on the proposed budget.
‘%[ufonnatmn about the budget ordinance is then published in the official newspaper of the City. At the September
i‘board meeting, the budget is legally enacted through passage of the budget ordinance. The City Clerk is authorized
Z’to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
E?expendmlres of any fund must be approved by the Board of Aldermen.

he actual receipts and disbursements are accumulated each month and compared to the budgeted amounts and

reviewed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. Any revisions on the budget during the year are approved by the
@oard of Aldermen.

%F Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “Cash and Cash Equivalents” includes all demand, savings
b.ccounts and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows,
“Cash and Cash Equivalents” include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term
investments with an original maturity of generally three months or less.

(G. Prepaid [tems

Prepaid iterns are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the subsequent
fiscal year. The nonspendable fund balance for prepaid expenses in the governmental funds has been recorded to

signify that a portion of the fund balance is not available for other subsequent expenditures. Prepaid items are
recorded using the consumption method.

H. Interfund Transactions and Balances

Transactions between funds that are representative of short-term lending/borrowing arrangements and transactions

ithat have not resulted in the actual transfer of cash at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “Due to/from other

funds.” Noncurrent portions of interfund receivables and payables are reported as “Advances to/from other funds.”
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a nonspendable find balance
account, if applicable, to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
in the Statement of Net Position. Any outstanding balances between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial staterents as “Internal balances.”

I. Restricted Assets

Fund assets required to be held and/or used as specified in bond indentures, bond resolutions, tristee agreements,
board resolutions and donor specifications have been reported as restricted assets. When both restricted and
nonrestricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets first.

J.  Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include land, construetion in progress, infrastructure, buildings and improvements, leased
equipment and equipment and vehicles, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. All
capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.

‘Donated capital assets are capitalized at acquisition value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded

as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method Bstimated useful lives of the
: various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows.

Capitalization Estimated
Thresholds Useful Life

Land $ 0 N/A
Infrastructure 0 20-50 years
Buildings 50,000 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 25,000 20 years
Mobile equipment 5,000 5-10 years
Furniture and equipment 5,000 3-7 years
Leased property under capital leases * *

* Threshold will correspond with the amount for the asset classification as listed above.

Leased property capitalization policy and estimated useful life will correspond with the amounts for
the applicable asset classification, as listed above.

K. Long-term Liabilities

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities. Bond
discounts or premiums and the difference between reacquisition price and the net carrying value of refunded debt are
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective
interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources
of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. See Note 7 for details.

L. Compensated Absences

The City has adopted a policy of compensation for accumnulated unpaid employee personal leave. No payment is
autherized for accrued major medical leave. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require accrual of accumulated unpaid employee benefits as liabilities in the government-wide financial
statements and Proprietary Funds financial statements. In fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
compensated absence liability payable only if the payable has matured, for example an employee resigns or retires.

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
respurces (expense) until that time.

Deferred amount on refunding — For current refunding and advance refunding resulting in defeasance of debt
reported by governmental activities, business type activities, and proprietary funds, the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is reported as a deferred outftow of resources or a
deferred inflow of resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner
over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. '

Deferred outflows related to pensions — This amount represents the City’s proportionate share of the deferred
outflows of resources reported by the pension plan in which the City participates. See Note 9 for additional details.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Deferred outflows related to OPEB — This amount represents the City’s deferred outflows of resources reported by
the OPEB plan in which the City participates. See Note 10 for additional details.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
revenue) unti] that time.

Property tax for future reporting period/unavailable revenue- property taxes — Deferred inflows of resources should
e reported when resources associated with imposed nonexchange revenue transactions are received or reported as a
eceivable before tbe period for which property taxes are levied.

Deferred inflows related to pensions — This amount represents the City’s proportionate share of the deferred inflows
of resources reported by the pension plan in which the City participates. See Note 12 for additional details.

Pensions

e

?or purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
gelated to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees®
Rehrement System of Mississippi (PERS) and additions to/deductions from PERS’ fiduciary net position have been
detennmed on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds

pf employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
%re reported at fair value.

?if) Postemplovment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPER)

;

;E?or purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
ig&lated to OPEB, and OPEB expense, benefit payments are recorded when the OPEB benefits come due. Additions
fo/deductions from the OPEB Plan net position have determined on the same basis as they are reported as the OPEB
i;)lan The total OPEB liability is the actuarial accrued liability on the measurement date.

é’ Equity Classifications

et position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classifisd in three components:
i
I

:NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated

iepremation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowmgs attributable to the
acqmsmon construction or improvement of those assets.

?ESTRICTED

Restricted net position consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by external groups such as
reditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of the govemnments; or law through constitutional
Tovisions or enabling legislation.

INRESTRICTED

Unrestricted net position is all other net position not meeting the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

In February 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions (“GASB Statement No. 54”), which became effective in fiscal 2011. Under GASB Statement No. 54,
fund balance in governmental fund financial statements is classified as: non-spendable, restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned.

The governmental fund type classified fund balances as follows:
NONSPENDABLE

Non-spendable fund balance consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their form (e.g. inventories and prepaid
expenses) ot funds that legally or contractually must be maintained intact (e.g. corpus of endowment funds).

RESTRICTED

Restricted find balance consists of funds that are mandated for a specific purpose by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

COMMITTED

Committed fund balance consists of funds that are set aside for a specific purpose by the City’s highest level of

decision making authority (Board of Aldermen and Mayor). Forma! action must be taken by the end of the fiscal,

year to commit fund balances. The same formal action must be taken to remove or change the limitations placed on;
the funds. The formal action is an order of the Board of Aldermen as approved in the board minutes. Currently there
1s no committed fund balance for this city.

ASSIGNED

Assigned fund balance consists of funds that are set aside with the intent to be used for a specific purpose by the
City’s highest level of decision making authority or a body or official that has been given the authority to assign
funds. This intent to use funds for specific purpose is approved by the Board of Aldermen in the board minutes.
Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit fund balance. Currently there is no assigned fund balance for this city.

UNASSIGNED

Unassigned fund balance consists of excess funds that have not been classified in the previous four categories. All
funds in this category are considered spendable resources. This category also provides the resources necessary to
meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other govemmental funds, if expenditures incurred for a specific purpose has
exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to the purposes, those amounts are reported as negative
unassigned fund balance.

The Board of Aldermen establishes, modifies, or rescinds fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance oz
resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is
further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitrment of the fund (such as special incentives).
Assigned fund balance is established by the Board of Aldermen through adoption or amendment of the budget as
intended for specific purpose (such as purchase of capital assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes).

The City uses restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing so, such as a grant agreement requiring

dollar for doilar spending. Additionally, the City would first nse committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned

amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures/expenses are made.
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(3. Property Tax Revenues

Restrictions associated with property tax levies vary with the statutory authority. The amount of increase in certain
property taxes is limited by state law. Generally, this restriction provides that these tax levies shall produce no more
han 110% of the amount which resulted from the assessments of the previous year.

Ihe Board of Aldermen, each year at a meeting in September, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal year which
begins on October 1. Real property taxes become a lien on January 1 of the current year, and personal property
laxes become a lien on March 1 of the current year. Taxes on both real and personal property, however, are due on
or before February 1 of the next succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes that become a lien are
due in the month that coincides with the month of the original purchase.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require property taxes to be recognized at
the levy date if measurable and available. All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they
are levied. Motor vehicle and mobile home taxes do not meet the measurability and collectability criteria for

%bropcrty tax recognition because the lien and due date cannot be established until the date of the original purchase
oocurs.

_g
1
R. Interggvernmental Revenues in Governmental Funds.

%ntergovemmental revenues, consisting of grants, entitlements and shared revenues, are usually recorded in
_;@ovemmental Funds when measurable and available. However, the "available” criterion applies for certain federal
grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because expenditure is the prime factor for determining

cligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist, revenue recognition depends on compliance
Wwith these requirements.

S, Estimates

he process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Jnited States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities,
Tevenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the
financial statements. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

he collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions are held in the name of the State Treasurer under a
]:%rogram established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is govemed by Section 27-105-5 Miss. Code Ann.
1972). Under this program, the entity’s finds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State
’Ereasurer. Fimancial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those
1eposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by the institution would be liquidated by

the State Treasure to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depositary Insurance Corporation
FEDIC™).

i

lustodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial institution’s failure, the City’s deposits might not be

3iecovered. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of September 30, 2019, the City’s
bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit rsk. ’

et

s of September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $38,046,061 and the bank balances
ge)taled $39,372,952. Of the bank balances, $750,000 was insured by the FDIC and $38,622,952 was covered by
pooled and/or pledged collateral.

.

ot
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

As of September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s restricted cash was $2,095,208.

NOTE 3 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

In December 2007, the City entered into an agreement with the City of Hernando, Mississippi whereby the City of
Southaven will design and construct a sewer system (the “Hurricane Creek Project™) by which it will collect and
transport wastewater through the City of Hemando to the DeSoto County Regional Authority’s sewer system for
treatment and disposal. Upon completion, the City of Hernando will operate and maintain the sewer line. Further,

the City of Hernando has agreed to pay the City of Southaven $1,000,000 over seven years to reimburse the City of
Southaven for a portion of the construction costs. The City of Hernando makes payments annually on October 1.
The project was complete as of September 30, 2015. The interest rate on the note is 1.95%. See the amortization
schedule below:

Year Ending Enterprise Fund Debt

September 30 Principal Interest
2020 b 148,372 5,955
2021 150,725 3,378
Total 3 299,097 3 9,333
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NQTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

apital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

'%["otal capital assets, not being depreciated
§§

Capltal assets, being depreciated:

Buﬂdmgs and improvements
quipment and vehicles

Elﬁ'ash'ucture

Il.,eased equipment

Tota.i capital assets, being depreciated

!

LGSS accumulated depreciation for:

Bmldmgs and improvements
Eqmpment and vehicles
lnfrastmcture

Igeased equipment

"gi?otal accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

H
{
f

Gé&iremmental activities capital assets, net

BI%TSINESS—TYPE ACTIVITIES

Capltai assets, not being depreciated:
Land

€:0nstruct1on In progress

%‘otai capital assets, not being depreciated

éapﬂal assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Infrastructure

ﬁquipment and vehicles

Leased equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Ldss accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

hfrastructure

quipment and vehicles

cased equipmernt

Total accumulated depreciation

Fotal capital assets, being depreciated, net

Bubsiness-type activities capital assets, net

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSTPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

The following is a sumnary of capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2019:

Balance at Balance at
9/30/2018 Additions Deletions 9/30/2019
5 9,376,445 § 615,000 3 (1,943,924) § 8,047,521
1,772,527 3,230,216 - 5,002,743
11,148.972 3.845,216 {1,943.924) 13.050,264
61,909,904 - (786,190) 61,123,714
20,851,130 1,487,411 (540,493) 21,798,048
108,422,720 531,352 - 108,954,072
880,615 - {202.033) 678,582
192.064.369 2,018,763 (1,528.,716) 192,554,416
(19,708,897} (1,571,652} 565,405 (20,715,144)
(14,892,371) (1,502,029) 517,298 (15,877,102)
(70,310,123) (5,340,917) 10,235 (75,640,805)
(880,615) - 202,033 (678,582)
{105,792.006) (8.414,598) 1,294,971 (112,911,633}
86,272,363 {6,395 835) (233.745) 79,642,783
§ 97.421,335 $(2.550619) § (2.177.669) § 92.693.047
3 579,036 i - g - Y 579,036
- 1,077,730 - 1,077,730
579,036 1,077,730 - 1,656,766
381,573 - - 381,573
64,709,960 - : - 64,709,960
3,212,043 281,785 (144,041) 3,349,787
744,057 - - 744,057
69,047.633 281,785 (144.041) 69,185,377
(188,896) {50,065) - (238,961)
(25,012,781) (1,978,481) - (26,991,262)
(2,016,491) (269,246) 144,041 (2,141,696)
(327.384) (25,762) - (357,146}
(27,545.552) (2,327.554) 144,041 (29,729.065)
41,502,081 (2,045,769) - 39,456,312
$ 42,081,117 $ (968039 § - $ 41.113,078
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions:

Governmental activities:

General government 5 635,337
Public safety 1,231,605
Public works 5,124,264
Culture and recreation 1,423,392

Total depreciation expense, govermmental activities hy 8.414,598

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 3 2,327,554

Total depreciation expense, business-type activities 3 2,327,554

NOTE 5 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental receivables consist of the following:

Description Amount
Sales tax § 1362211
Capital project 51,864

Total $ 1414075

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

The following is a summary of interfund transactions and balances:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund
Major funds:
General Fund h 921,872 $ -
Bond Funded Capital Projects Fund - 921,872
Total $ 921,872 $ 921,872

The purpose of the due to / from was to record cash from the construction account owes to the general fund bank
account.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT
[Long-term activity for the year ended September 30, 2019 was as follows:
Amounts
Balance at Balance at Due Within
9/30/2018 Additions Deletions 9/30/2019 One Year
Governmentai activities:
General obligation bonds payable $ 37,455,000 b - § 4,784,500 § 32,670,500 $4,647,500
Tax increment fmancing bonds payable 2,560,000 - 835,000 1,725,000 840,000
Notes payable 5,532,105 - 1,382,565 4,149,540 - 1,414,506
Compensated absences 545,889 551,569 545,889 351,569 551,569
Bond premium 728,800 - 90,942 637,858 -
Bond discounts {931) - {931) - -
Governtnental activities $ 46,820,863 $ 551,569 $ 7,637,965 $ 39,734 467 $7,453,575
Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds payable $ 16,325,000 $ - $ 1,299,500 $ 15,025,500 $1,327,500
Notes payable 15,833,388 - 1,168,662 14,664,726 1,194,887
Leases payable 135,153 - 66,143 69,010 69,010
Compensated absences 32,691 45,636 32,691 45,636 45,636
Bond premimn 1,498,084 - 124,773 1,373,311 -
Bond discounts {36,976) - (3,700) (33,276} -
Busmess-type activities $ 33,787,340 3 45,636 $ 2,688,069 $31,144,907 $2,637,033
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General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge full faith and credit of the City. General obligation bonds
currently outstanding are as follows: '

Amounts
Interest Issue Maturity
Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding
General Long Term
2008 3.63-5.00% 7/1/2008 7/1/2028 4,000,000 2,245,000
2008 3.00-5.00% 4/16/2009 11/1/2020 6,665,000 1,095,000
2010 3.125-4.00% 2/1/2010 2/1/2020 6,000,000 580,000
2010 2.00 -3.25% 3/23/2010 10/1/2019 3,595,000 175,000
2010 2.00-3.30% 11/4/2010 11/1/2024 3,225,000 1,530,000
2011 2.00-3.50% 1/25/2011 10/1/2021 3,505,000 1,055,000
2012 1.25-1.70% 11/6/2013 11/1/2022 2,875,000 1,215,000
2012 1.00 - 2.25% 10/9/2012 12/1/2024 3,015,000 1,820,000
2013 2.50-3.50% 11/15/2013 - 12/1/2033 6,565,000 5,320,000
2014 3.97% 1/31/2034 3/1/2025 2,930,000 1,760,000
2014 2.00-5.00% 3/4/2014 3/1/2024 7,945,000 3,295,000
2015 2.00 -3.00% 3/11/2014 12/1/2025 6,870,000 5,105,000
2017 2.30% 11/22/2017 2/1/2030 3,620,000 3,531,000
2017 3.75-4.00% 12/21/2017 1/1/2030 6,000,000 6,000,000
2012 Water/Sewer 1.00-2.125% 10/6/2012 12/1/2023 2,735,000 1,350,000
2016 Water/Sewer 2.00 - 5.00% 5/3/2016 2172027 13,350,000 11,620,000
Total generel obligation bonds $ 82,895,000 § 47,696,000
Tax increment financing (“TIF”) bonds outstanding at year end are as follows:
Amounts
Interest Issue Matarity
Description Rate Date Date Tssued Outstanding
1999 S Lake Phase | 4.95% 3/2/1999 3/1/2019 3 560,000 b -
2005A Towne Center 4.07-4.63% 9/30/2006 9/30/2020 5,000,000 900,000
2005B Towne Center 5.94.6.64% 9/30/2006 9/30/2020 4,200,000 825,000
Total TTF Bonds 3 9,760,000 $ 1,725,000

According to the TIF development agreement (s), the ad valorem tax collected by the City as well as half of the ad i
valorem taxes collected by DeSoto County for the parcels related to the Southaven Towne Center are allocated to
the payment of the related general government TIF bonds. According to the Southlake Center development
agreement, the ad valorem tax collected by the City for those parcels are aliocated to the payment of the related
general government TIF bonds. The ad valorem taxes collected from the parcels at the Southaven Towne Center and
the Southlake Center are approximately $700,000 and $75,000, respectively. The debt service on these bonds in the
current fiscal year was approximately $977,000. According to the development agreement, the remaining balance
on the debt service is paid for through sales tax generated on the businesses located on those parcels of land.
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Notes outstanding at year end are as follows:

Amounts
Interest Issuc Maturity
Description Rate Date Date . Issued Qutstanding
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 3.00% 12/1/2002 9/1/2022 3 1,400,961 291,942
MS Dept of Health DWSLREF 3.00% 1/1/2003 10/1/2022 1,361,525 277,653
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 3.00% 7/1/2003 4/1/2023 1,250,436 298,457
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 4.00% 9/20/2004 7112024 1,425,168 458,531
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 1.95% 11/2/2007 1/1/2029 807,693 470,060
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 1.95% 11/2/2007 10/1/2029 2,096,881 1,227,474
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 1.95% 10/1/2068 6/1/2030 1,082,138 644,675
MS Dept of Health DWSLRF 1.95% 10/1/2008 9/30/2030 1,821,006 1,129,995
MS Development Authority 3.00% 9/1/2010 9/1/2020 683,373 71,209
MS Dept of Environmental Quality WPCRLF 1.75% 5/1/2011 12/31/2033 4,219,481 2,968,001
MS Dept of Environmental Quality WPCRLF 1.75% 1/1/2010 8/31/2035 6,766,517 5,842,389
MS Dept of Environimental Quality WPCRLF 1.75% 9/1/2013 12/31/2035 1,241,824 1,055,54%
Bancorpsouth - 2011 2.87% 3/1/2011 3/1/2021 560,000 124,801
Trustmark - 2018 2.81% 73172018 6/19/2022 5,200,000 3,953,530
Total Notes § 29,917,003 3 18,814,266

The aggregate maturities of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, tax increment financing, and notes for the
rears subsequent to September 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Long-Term Debt Enterprise Fund Debt
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 6,902,006 1,111,984 2,522,386 834,998
2021 6,512,925 900,574 2,589,436 769,518
2022 5,354,609 697,528 2,669,290 691,083
2023 3,761,000 554,805 2,598,335 604,643
2024 3,551,500 452,664 2,570,893 519,860
2025 2029 9,467,000 1,155,654 11,406,919 1,440,876
2030-2034 2,996,000 203,059 4,904,314 230,393
2035-2039 - - 428,653 3,786

Total 538345040 8 5,076,268 § 29,690,226 § 5,095,157
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Leases.
Description of Leasing Arrangements.

The City’s leasing operations consist principally of the leasing of various police vehicles and utility lines. These
leases are classified as capital leases. The vehicle leases expire over the next three years, while the utility lines
leases expire over the next 10 years.

Future minimum lease payments and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of September 30,
2019 were as follows:

Year Ending Business-type Activities
September 30 Principal Interest

2020 § 69,010 5 2,991
Present Value

of Minimum '
Lease Payments $ 69,010 5 2991

Legal Debt Margin.

The City is subject to the limitations of indebtedness prescribed by Section 21-33-303, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). No
mumicipality may issue bonds secured by a pledge of its full faith and credit in an amount which, when added to the
then outstanding bond indebtedness for such municipality, would exceed the 15% and 20% tests prescribed in
Section 21-33-303. These percentages are applied to the assessed value of the taxable property within such
municipality, with certain types of bond issues being excluded from the authorized debt limit tests. Presented in the ||
schedule below are the calculations of the applicable statutory debt limitations and the resulting margin for further
debt in the amount of $53,454,621 (the smaller of the two computed margins) as of September 30, 2019.

15% Test 20% Test
Assessed value as of September 30, 2019:
$612,370,809 times applicable percentage $ 91,855,621 $122,474,162
Tess present debt subject to debt Hmits as of September 30, 2019:
Total bonds outstanding (excluding MDB backed bonds) (38,401,000) (38,401,000}
Margin for addifonal debt § 53,454,621 3 84,073,162
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NOTE 8 - DEFERRED LOSS ON REFUNDING

The unamortized deferred loss on refundings relates to General Obligation Refunding Bonds for governmental and
business-fype activities. Deferred loss on refundings reported in the statement of net position consist of the
following:

Governmental
Activities
Series 2015 3 270260

Business-type
Activities
iSeries 2016 3 522,438

NOTE 9 —- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

seneral Information about the Pension Plan

Plan_Description. City of Southaven, Mississippi contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
g/llslssmmppl (PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and

ability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Plan
provisions and the Board of Trustees’ authority to determine contribution rates are established by Miss. Code Ann.
Section 25-11-1 et seq., (1972, as amended) and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.
?ERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
ﬁlformamon That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees’ Retirement Systers, PERS
Bmldmg, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling 1-800-444-PERS.

Beneﬁts Provided. Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hitng for qualifying
employees and officials of the State of Mississippi, state univessities, community and junior colleges, and teachers
and employees of the public school districts. For those persons employed by political subdivisions and
;msn*umentahtws of the State of Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity’s participation in
PERS by the PERS’ Board of Trustees. If approved, membership for the entity’s employees is a condition of
émploymcnt and eligibility is granted to those who qualify upon hiring. Participating members who are vested and
Ietire at or after age 60 or those who retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of
reditable service for employees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon application,
an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.0 percent of their average
&ompensa’aon for each year of creditable service up to and including 30 years (235 years for those who became
z?ﬂembers of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.5 percent for each additional year of credited service with an
dctuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age
hfhat the member is below 65, whichever is less. Average compensation is the average of the eraployee’s earnings
during the four highest compensated years of creditable service. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of
membersmp service (four years of membership service for those who became members of PERS before July I,
2007) PERS also provides certain death and disability benefits. A Cost-of-living Adjustment (COLA) payment is
inade to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The COLA is equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for
‘ach full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who
éecame members of PERS before July 1, 2011), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan
growszons are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.
i
Coutmbutlons At September 30, 2019, PERS members were required to contribute 9% of their annual covered
E‘alary, and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer’s rate at September 30,
2019 was 17.40% percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS members and
rmployers are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City’s
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contributions (employer share only) to PERS for the years ending September 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017 were
$3,648,602, $3.440,283, and $3,244,023, respectively, equal to the required contributions.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferved Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2019, the City reported a lability of $60,687,730 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to caleulate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contribution to the pension plan relative
to projected coniributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share used to ||
calculate the September 30, 2019 net pension liability was 0.344974 percent, which was based on a measurement
date of June 30, 2019. This was an increase of 0.008831 percent from: its proportion share used to calculate the
September 30, 2018 net pension Hability, which was based cn a measurement date of June 30, 2018,

For the vear ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $7,518,198, At September 30, 2019,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience 3 - $ 404,830
Net difference between projected and actual

eamings on pension plan investments 2,556,067
Change of assumptions 585,848 -
Changes in the propottion and differences

between the City's contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 3,935,888 -
City contributions subsequent to the

measurerment date 916,177 -
Total ¥ 5.437,913 $ 2,960,897

$916,177 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City Contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensicns will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending September 30:
2020 ¥ 1,164,376
2021 {355,851)
2022 475,243
2023 277,071

$ 1,560,839

Actiarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement:
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nflation 2.75 percent

Salary increases 3.00 - 18.25 percent, including inflation

[nvestment rate of retum 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

Vortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Mortality Table projected with Scale BB
o 2022, with males rates set forward one year.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. The experience report is dated April 18, 2017.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected nominal retumns, net of

ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
et by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of
June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 2700 % 4.90 %
International Equity 22.00 4.75
Global Equity 12.00 5.00
Fixed mcome 20.00 1.50
Real Estate 10,00 4.00
Private Equity 8.00 6.25
Cash 1.00 025

Total 100.00%

[

iscount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
ontribution rate (9.00%) and that employer contributions will be made at the current employer confribution rate
17.40%). Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of cwrrent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
geturn on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability. :

o

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pemsion liability to_changes in the discount rate. The
fé)llowing presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
i 75 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
Ising a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or 1- percentage-point higher (8.75 percent)
than the current rate:
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1% Discount
Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(6.75%) (71.75%) (8.75%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability 3 79,776,128 $ 60,687,730 § 44,931,977

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued PERS financial report.

NOTE 10- OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

General Information about the OPEB Plan.

Plan description. The City maintaing fully-insured medical insurance coverage for eligible employees and retired
employees and their dependents under the age of 65. The City provides a single-employer defined benefit post-
employment health care plan (“the Plan™) that covers eligible employees and retired employees of the City and their
dependents under the age of 65. The plan is funded 100% by the contdbutions from retirees. To be eligible to
continue coverage under the City’s plan, employees must satisfy the retirement eligibility requirements. Retirees are
required to confribute 100% of the premium rates. '
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Eligibility for Retiree Benefits: Retirees are eligible to continue medical insurance coverage until
attaining age 65. To be eligile for coverage after retirement,
employees must be covered as an active employee in the City health
program at the time of retirement, and meet the following conditions:

o For employees hired prior to 7/1/2011:

Age 60 with 4 service years or

Any age and 25 years of service
o For employees hired on or after 7/1/2011:

Age 60 with 8 service years or

Any age and 30 vears of service
Dependent Eligibility: Spouses and children of the retiree are eligible for the plan.
Benefits cease upon the death of the retiree or the retirce/spouse
attaining age 65. '
Medical Benefits: Retirees can continue in the medical plan and can choose

between the following plans
0 1000 Deductble

0 2000 Deductible

0 3000 Deductible

Retiree Contributions: Monthly coniributions for retirees by plan option and tier:
Tier 1000 Ded 2000 Ded 3000 Ded

Employee § 484.63 § 452.87 $429.26

EnployeetSpouse  §  862.64 $§ 806,10 §764.08

Employee+Child(ren) § 749.72 § 700.59 §664.06

Employee+tFamly — § 1,093.33 § 1021.66 $968.41

Under GASB 75, employers are also required to consider any implicit subsidy that may be occurring. Medical costs
generally increase with advancing age. Therefore, the medical costs for the retiree group are higher than the medical
osts for the employee group, even taking Medicare into account. Stated another way, when a plan includes both
mployees and retirees, the blended premiums are almost always higher than what the premiums would be for
employees, and lower than what the premiums would be for retirees, if each group were rated separately. The
bremium rate difference is referred to as the implicit rate subsidy.

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

‘The valuation of the City’s plan is based on assumptions with regard to the survival of plan members, the average
per-capita claims costs, when cumrent employees are expected to retire, and so forth. The assumptions were derived
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from a combination of plan experience and actuarial judgment.

The prior year mortality assumptions were baged on using the RPH-2014 tables with a generational projection ﬁsing
Projection Scale MP-2017. We have updated the generational projection using the Project Scale MP-2018. The first
vear’s claim cost trend was revised from 6% to 20% based on known premium. increases for 2019.

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each period. The
following are the discount rates used in each period:

2018 3.83%
2019 2.75%

Discount Rate

The discount rate is used to compute the present value of future post-retirement benefits. The higher the discount
rate, the lower the present values, and therefore the OPEB cost. For plans that are not funded through irrevocable
trusts, paragraph 36 of GASB 75 requires that the discount rate equal the “expected yield or index rate for 20-year,
tax-exempt obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher...” determined as of the
measurement date, which in this case is September 30, 2019. The Plan’s valuation used the Fidelity General
Obligation AA 20 Year Yield as of the measurement date, which was 2.75%.

OPEBE Plan — Number of Employees Covered

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits payments 5
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits payments 0
Active employees 387
Total 392
Participation by Retirees: 100% for future eligible retirees are assumed to choose to participate in the plan at
retirement.
Dependent Status: 20% of future retirees are assumed to have a covered spouse. Current marital statns £

current retirees is assumed to persist in all future years. Husbands are assumed to be
three years clder than wives, 0% of retirees are assumed to have children.

Claim Cost Trend: " For 2018 through 2021, L&E best estimate assumptions, developed by observation af)
extrapolation of plan experience. Thereafter, rates developed using the baseline
projection of the SoA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model and the following mode
input variables:

Rate of Inflation: 2.20%
Rate of Growth in Real Income/GDP per-x;.apita: 1.60%
Excess Medical Cost Growth: 1.30%
Health Share of GDP in 2027: 20.40%
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ealth Share of GDP Resistance Point: 25.00%
ear for Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth: 2075

See below for the table of the trend factors.

Year Trend Year Trend
2018 20% 2059-2065 4.6%
2019 5.8% 2066 4.5%
2020 5.6% 2067 4.4%
2021 5.4% 2068 4.3%
2022-2043 52% 2069-2070 4.2%
2044 5.1% 2071 4.1%
2045-2046 5.0% 2072-2073 4.0%
2047-2049 4.9% 2074 3:9%
20502033 4.8% 2075 3.8%
252054&058 4.7% 2076+ 3.8%
Medical Plan Elections: Current and future retirees are assumed to enroll in plans

based on current plan elections.

Claim Costs: Age-adjusted premiums were used for claims costs. They were derived from
the premiums and adjusted for the risk characteristics of the group.

OPEBE Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources related to OPEB

Ihe City’s total OPEB liability was $6,669,917 as of September 30, 2019 and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $721,607. At September 30, 2019,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 1,239,627
Differences between expected and actual
Experience 7,435
Total $ 1,247,062
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:

Year Ending June 30:

2020 $ 311,766
2021 311,766
2022 311,766
2023 311,764
Total $ 1,247,062

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Measurement Date September 30, 2019

Valuation Date September 30, 2018

Inflation 2.20 percent

Salary increases 0.50 percent

Discount Rate 2.75 percent

Cost Method Eniry age, determined as a level percent of Pay

methed.
Prior Year Discount Rate 3.83 percent

Pre-retirement mortality rate was based on RPH-2014 Employee Mortality Table, Generational with Projection
Seale MP-2018 for males or females, as appropriate. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RPH 2014
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, Generational with Projection Scale MP-2018 for males or females, as
appropriate.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at September 30, 2019 was 2.75 percent
and it was based on the 9/30/2019 Fidelity General Obligation AA 20-Year Yield.

Sensitivity of the City's Total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the City’s Total
OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s Total QPER liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.83 percent) or l-perceritage-point higher (4.83 percent) than the current discount
rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.83%) (3.83%) {4.83%)
Total OPEB liability $ 7,613,678 $ 6,669,917 3 5,842,582
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Sensitivity of the City’s Total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the City’s Total OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s Total OPER liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare
cost trend rates:

Healthcare
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rates
Current 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 5,601,597 5 6,669,917 3 7,982,934

NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT

I'he City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
prissions; and natural disasters. The exposure is covered by purchase of commercial insurance.

NOTE 12 — EFFECT OF DEFERRED AMOUNT ON NET POSITION

The net investment in capital assets net position amount of $65,252,562 includes the effect of deferring the
recognition of expenses resulting from a deferred outflow from advance refinding of the City’s debt. The $792,698,
halance of the deferred outflow of resources at September 30, 2019 will be recognized as an expense and decrease
'gle net investment in capital assets net position.

Eﬁ‘he unrestricted net position amount of ($48,718,525) includes the effect of deferring the recognition of expenses
ffssulting from a deferred outflow from OPEB. The $1,247,062 balance of the deferred outflow of resources at
geptember 30, 2019 will be recognized as an expense and will decrease the unrestricted net position over the next 5
years.

£

The unrestricted net position amount of ($25,201,422) includes the effect of deferring the recognition of expenses
fesulting from a deferred outflow from pensions. A portion of the deferred outflows of resources related to pension
ih the amount of $916,177 resulting from the City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
é‘?cognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. The $4,521,736 balance
of deferred outflow of resources, at September 30, 2019 will be recognized as an expense and will decrease the
#nrestricted net position over the next 4 years.

he unrestricted net position amount of ($25,201,422) includes the effect of deferring the recognition of revenue
esulting from a deferred inflow from pensions. The $2,960,897 balance of deferred inflow of resources, at
eptember 30, 2019 will be recognized as a revenue and will increase the unrestricted net position over the next 3
Cars.

e TS W

.M.N..‘.....%W.W(:nu

NOTE 13 - LITIGATION

i

'Ehe City 1s subject to various legal proceedings in various stages of litigation, the outcome of which is not
terminable at this time. Management of the City and its legal counsel do not anticipate that there will be a
néézaterial effect on the financial statements as a result of the cases presently in progress.

NOTE 14 — TAX ABATEMENTS

For the year beginning October 1, 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) implemented
Statement 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This statement requires governmental entities to disclose the reduction
ugx tax revenues resulting from an agrsement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which
@) one or more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the
individual or entity promises to take a specific action after the agreement has been entered into that contributes to

conomic development or otherwise benefits the governments and the citizens of those governments.

£h.
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The City of Southaven Board of Aldermen negofiates property tax abatements on an individual basis. All
abatements are for ten years and are for economic development purposes. The City had thirteen (13) tax abatement |
agreements with thirteen entities as of September 30, 2019.

The City had two types of abatements, none of which provide for the abatement of school or state tax levies. These

taxes are not included in the amounts listed since DeSoto County, Mississippi collects the ad valerem taxes and
forwards the City of Southaven their Jevied portion of those collections:

Sections 27-31-101 and 27-31-105, Miss. Code (Ann.) 1972

All allowable property tax levies
All allowable property tax levies except for countywide road fund tax levy

All thirteen companies have tax abatements listed under this statute.

% of Taxes Abated Amount of Taxes
During the Fiscal Abated During the
Category Year Fiscal Year
Construction and expansion of a2 manufacturing
and/or storage facility 45.8% 3 484,498

These companies were not required to comply with any special provisions in order to receive the abatements and the
City made no commitments as part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Position date but before the financial statements are available to be
issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about
conditions that existed at the Statemnent of Net position date are recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the Statement of Net
position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of the City of Southaven, Mississippi
evaluated the activity of the City through the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and
determined that no subsequent events have occurred requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actnal - General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis _ Final Budget
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 21,100,000 $ 21,100,000 § 21,588,882 3 888,882
Sales tax 14,500,000 14,593,400 15,148,749 555,849
Licenses and petmits 671,000 726,000 843,659 117,659
Intergovernmental 959,000 974,000 969,170 (4,830)
Charges for services 3,833,000 3,880,000 3,671,472 (208,528)
Fines 2,675,000 2,675,000 2,426,193 (248,807)
Franchise taxes 1,713,000 1,913,000 1,937,798 24,798
Interest 125,000 475,000 507,196 32,196
Rents 470,000 600,000 637,679 37,679
Grant proceeds 24,000 3,165,500 1,581,405 (1,584,095)
Miscellaneous 90,000 620,000 167,084 (452,916)
Total Revenues 46,160,000 50,721,900 49,879,287 (842,613)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Personnel services 5,259,825 5,289,825 5,176,210 113,615
Supplies 150,500 321,970 321,393 577
Other services and charges 8,407,775 13,415,355 11,244,985 2,170,370
Total general government 13,818,100 19,027,150 16,742,588 2,284,562
Public safety:
Police:
Personnel services 10,000,700 9,939,700 9,607,719 331,881
Supplies 478,500 494,500 494,606 (106)
Other services and charges 933,500 1,338,500 1,320,586 17,014
Fire:
Personnel services 9,574,200 10,118,200 10,000,781 117,415
Supplies 390,900 386,700 324,530 62,470
Other services and charges 667,000 655,200 622,772 32,428
Total public safety 22,044,800 22,932,800 22,370,994 561,806
Public works
Personnel services 1,232,000 1,215,000 1,087.431 127,569
Supplies 239,000 269,700 269,594 106
Other services and charges 940,000 1,015,000 1,077,824 {62,824)
Total public works 2,411,000 2,499,700 2,434,849 64,851
continped
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
{Continued)
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amonnts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
Culturejand recreation
Personnel services 3,235,000 3,082,000 2,848,377 233,623
Supplies 581,000 551,000 492,654 58,346
Otheriservices and charges 2,102,000 2,126,000 2,120,645 5,355
Total ctilture and recreation 5,918,000 5,759,000 5,461,676 297,324
Health gmd welfare
Persopmel services 275,700 297,700 289,394 8,306
Supplies 22,000 23,700 23,217 483
Otherservices and charges 22,500 30,500 27,916 2,584
Total health and welfare 320,200 351,500 340,527 11,373
Capitalibutlay 1,667,900 2,171,350 2,061,458 109,892
Total Expenditures 46,180,000 52,741,900 49.412,092 3,329,808
Excess|(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over(Under) Expenditures (20,000} (2,020,000 467,195 2,487,195
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of assets 20,000 2,020,000 2,520,635 500,635
Tota}i Other Financing Sources (Uses) 20,000 2,020,000 2,520,635 500,635
Net C;liilanges in Fund Balances - - 2,987,830 2,987,830
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - - 9,426,674 9,426,674
Fund Balgnce - End of Year 3 - 3 - 12,414,504 3 12,414,504
Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Revenues 92,958
Expenééitures 3)
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Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Tourism and Convention Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budgef
REVENUES .
Intergovernmental $ 1,800,000 1,800,000 b 2,201,191 $ 401,191
Charges for services 280,000 280,000 257,832 (22,16%3;)
Miscellaneous - 5,200,000 - (5,200,000)
Total Revenues 2,080,000 7,280,000 2,459,023 (4,820,971)
EXPENDITURES
Tourism and convention 455,000 3,481,464 285,737 3,195,727
Capital Outlay 232,000 2,405,536 2,405,536 -
Total Expenditures 687,000 5,887,000 2,691,273 3,195,727
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Note payments (1,393,000) (1,393,000) © (1,375,949) 17,051
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,393,000) {1,393,000) (1,375,949) 17,051
Net Changes in Fund Balances - - (1,608,199) (7.999,653)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - - 5,575,159 5,575,159
Fund Balance - End ofYear $ - - 3 3,966,960 $ (2424454
Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Revenues 123,736
Expenditures -
Fund Balance - End of Year (GAAP basis) 3 4,090,696

The notes to the required supplementary inforimation are an integral part of this schedule.
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City of Soathaven, Mississippi
Schedule of the City's Proporticnate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS
Last 10 Fistal Years*
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

City's propbrtionate share of the net pension linbility 8 50,687,730 55,910,567 55481240 55,295,502 47,077,580 35,708 308

(asset}
City's proportion of the net pension lability {asset) 0.344974% 0.336143% 0.333754% 0.309562% 0.304551% 0.294182%
City's covered payroll 22,467,251 21,465,937 11,410,527 19,803,435 19,026,578 17,576,032
City's propbrtionate share of the net pension lizbility

{asset) a3 p percentape of iis covered payrolt 270.12% 260.46% 259.13% 2719.22% 247.43% 158.64%
Plan fiduciaty net position as a percentage of (he total

pension lability 61.59% 62.54% 61.49% 5741 61.70% 6721%
The not the required supplemeniary information are an integral part of this schedule,
* The anidunts presenied for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of 6130 of the year prior 1o the fscal year presented.
This schedple is p d to ilivstrate Lhe requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASE 68 was jmplemented in FYE 9/30/15, and, until a full 10-year wend is compiled, the City
has only pipsented information for the years in which informaticn is available,
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City of Southaven, Mississippi
Schedule of City Contributions
PERS

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

- 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution 3 916,177 806,167 746,769 874,904 827,838
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution 916,177 B06,167 746,769 874,904 827,888
Contribution deficiency (excess) & - - B - -
City's covered payroll 5,816,997 5,118,521 4,741,390 5,554,945 5,256,432
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 15.75% 15.75% 15.75% 15.75% 15.75%

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB 68 was implemented in FYE 9/30/15, and, until a fui}
full 10-year trend is compiied, the City has only presented information for the years in which information {s-available.
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City, of Southaven, Mississippi

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
OPEB
Last|10 Fiscal Years*

2019 2018

Total OPEB Liability

Segvice Cost b 254,293 253,028

Interest 189,241 173,917

Changes of Benefit Terms - -

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 6,967 2,793

Changes in Assumptions or Other Inputs 1,549,534 -

Behefit Payments (33,693) (28,078)
Net change in Total OPEB Liability b 1,966,342 401,660
Total OPEB Liability - beginning : $ 4,703,575 $ 4,301,915
Tota] OPEB Liability - ending 3 6,669,917 §  4.703,575
Covered Employee Payroll $ 16,479,854 $ 16,397,865
Tota} OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered employee

payroll 40.5% 28.7%

The niotes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full
10-ygar trend is compiled, the City has only presented information for the years in which information is available.
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City of Southaven, Mississippi

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Budgetary Comparison Schedules

(1)

@)

3)

Basis of Presentation

The funds budgeted are presented in either this section or in the following schedules
presented in the supplementary information section of this report. For comparison
purposes, the final, amended budget is utilized, and it is presented on a modified cash
basis of accounting as required by the State of Mississippi, which is not consistent with

generally accepted accounting principles. All budgetary appropriations lapse at year-end.

Budget amendments and revisions

The budget is adopted and may be amended by the Board of Aldermen. A budgetary
comparison for the general fund and each major special revenue fund and is presented on
a cash basis of accounting.

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation.

The major differences beﬁveen the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary} as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

Pension Schedules

A.

74

Changes of assumptions.

2015

The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
Blue Collar Table projected to 2016 using Scale BB rather than the RP-2000 Mortality
Table, which was used prior to 2015.

The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree
Table, rather than the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015.

Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service retirement
rates were also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.
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City of Southaven, Mississippi
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IiéTotes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actnal and
anticipated experience.

The price inflation and investment rate of return assumptions were changed from 3.50%
to 3.00% and 8.00% to 7.75%, respectively.

2016

The assumed rate of interest credited to employee contributions was changed from 3.50%
to 2.00%.

[yl

01

The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
Blue Collar Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2022. Small adjustments were
also made to the Mortality Table for disabled lives.

The Wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.75% to 3.25%.

Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service retirement
rates were also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.

The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was
increased from 6% to 7%.

2019

The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the PubS.H-2010(B) Retiree
Table with the following adjustments:
For males, 112% of male rates from ages 18 to 75 scaled down to 105% for ages
80to 119.
For females, 85% of the female rates from ages 18 to 65 scaled up to 102% for
ages 7510 119.
Projection scale MP-2018 will be used to project future improvements in life
expectancy generationally.

The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to PubT.H-2010 Disabled Retiree for
disabled retirees with the following adjustments:

For males, 137% of male rates at all ages.

For females, 115% of female rates at all ages.

Projection scale MP-2018 will be used to project future improvements in life

75
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City of Southaven, Mississippi

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

expectancy generationally.
The price inflation assumption was reduced from 3.00% to 2.75%
The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.25% to 3.00%.

Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, and service retirement rates were also
adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.

The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was
increased from 7% to 9%.

(2) Change in Benefit Provisions

2016:

Effective July 1, 2016, the interest rate on employee contributions shall be calculated
based on the money market rate as published by the Wall Street Journal on December 31
of each preceding year with a minimum rate of one percent and a maximum rate of five
percent. '

(3)  Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions.
The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of employer confributions
are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which

contributions are reported (June 30, 2017 valuation for the June 30, 2019 fiscal year end).

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine the most recent
contribution rate reported in that schedule:

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 38.4 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

Price Inflation 3.00 percent

Salary increase 3.75 percent to 18.50 percent, including
inflation

Investmentrate of return 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
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City of Southaven, Mississippi

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
‘or the Year Ended September 30, 2019

OPEB Schedules

1) Changes of assumptions
2018:

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount
rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

2018 3.83%

2019 2.75%

2) Changes in benefit provisions

B3)  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Level Percent of Pay

Other Actuarial Assumptions: Best Estimate

Total OPEB Liability: Determined using the actuarial present value of
future employer-paid benefits and expenses

Pre-Retirement Mortality: RPH-2014 Employee Mortality Table, Generational
with Projection Scale MP-2018

Post-Retirement Mortality: RPH-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table,
Generational with Projection Scale MP-2018.

Employee Turnover: 45% of the Annual Rates of Withdrawal and

Vesting from the Public Employees’ Retirement
System of Mississippi’s June 30, 2017 valuation;
the 45% factor is based on recent City experience.

R
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City of Southaven, Mississippi

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Sample Gender
Age

Male Female
20 11.3% 13.5%
25 8.1% 8.2%
30 5.2% 5.4%
35 3.8% 3.9%
40 3.0% 3.2%
45+ 2.8% 2.7%

For all ages, rates of 32.5% for 19 year of employment and 23.5% for 2™ year.
g y p

Retirement: 60% of the Annual Rates of Service Retirements
from the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippi’s June 30, 2017 valuation; the 60%
factor is based on recent City experience.

Sample Male Female Male Female

Age
: <25 YOS* 25+YOS* <25 YOS* 25+Y0S*
45 0.0% 10.9% 0.0% 8.8%
50 0.0% 7.3% 0.0% 6.3%
55 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 9.5%
60 5.1% 9.8% 6.5% 11.1%

62 10.1% 16.0% 9.4% 18.8%
65 12.0% 14.8% 14.4% 21.3%
70 10.0% 12.5% 12.0% 12.8%
75 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%

*For employees hired on or after 7/1/2011, 30 YOS.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Supplementary information is presented to provide
greater detailed information than reported in the
preceding financial statements. This information, in
many cases, has been spread throughout the report
and 15 brought together here for greater clarity.
Financial schedules are not necessary for fair
presentation, in order to be in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Standards.
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

The Capital Project Fund Type is used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.
Individual capital project fund is utilized by the municipality to account for its construction
projects.

The City maintains only one capital project fund as follows:

1. Bond Funded Capital Project Fund
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! CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPP]

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Bond Funded Capital Project Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay § 2,000,000 2,000,000 ¥ 1,119,579 $ 880421
Total Expenditures 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,119,579 880.%21
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES
Bond Proceeds 2,000,000 2,000,000 - {2,000,000)
Grant proceeds - - 348,054 348,054
Interest earnings - - 84,513 84513
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,000,000 2,000,000 432,567 (1,567,433)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - - (687,012) (687012)
Fund Balance - Begioning of Year - - 1,639,683 1,639,683
Fund Balance - End of Yea $ - - 3 952,671 5 952,671
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumnulation of resources and payment of
general obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources and special assess-
ment bond principal which are obligated in some manner for payment.

The City maintains only one debt service fund to accomplish the afore stated purpose:

I Debt Service Fund
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

Scbedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Debt Service Fund

REVENUES
General property taxes
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

84

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budgel

$ 6,900,000 $ 6,900,000 7,161,302 $ 261,302

6,900,000 6,900,000 7,161,302 261,302
5,700,000 5,700,000 5,758,678 {58,678)

1,200,000 1,200,000 1,164,475 35,525
6,900,000 6,900,000 6,923,153 {23,153}

- - 238.149 238,149

- - 172,941 172,941

3 - 3 - 411,090 3 411,090
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the services to the general public on a continuing
basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the government’s
council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability
DUIPOSEs.

The City of Southaven, Mississippi operates the'following two (2) Enterprise Funds:

Utility Fund - is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the

residents of the City.

Sanitation Fund - is used to account for the provision of sanitation services to the

residents of the City.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position
Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actnal - Utility Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variange with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Sales $ 10,525,000 $ 10,610,000 3 11,350,783 iy 740,783
Miscellaneous 17,000 402,000 59,682 (342,318)
Total Revenues 10,542,000 11,012,000 11,410,465 308,465
EXPENSES
Personnel services 2,021,100 2,084,100 2,070,882 13,218
Depreciation and amortization - - 2,239,044 (2,259,044
Supplies 589,500 790,000 806,232 16,232)
Maintenance and other 2,630,000 2,916,000 5,221,200 (2,305,200)
Professional services 2,310,900 2,026,400 1,117,114 an9,286
Total Expenses 7,551,500 7,816,500 11,454,472 (3,687,972)
Operating Income (Loss) 2,990,500 3,195,500 (44,007) (3,239,507)
Non-Operating Revenue ensges
Non-revenue receipts - 154,000 - ]§';54,000
_ Interest mcome 20,000 100,000 ‘ 185,865 ?;%5,865)
Interst expense (32,010,500) (3,449,500} (3,505,128) 55,628
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) (2,950,500) (3,195,500) (3,319,263) Bf23,763
Net Changes in Net Position - - (3,363,270) (3,363,270)
Net Position - Beginning of Year - - 34,391,689 34,301,689
Net Position - End of Year b - 3 - $ 31,028,419 $ 31,028,419
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position
Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Sanitation Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
Budgeted Amounts Actoal Amounts Variance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services 3 2,450,000 § 2,450,000 5 2,912,210 - § 462,210
Other - - 940 940
Total Revenues 2,450,000 2,450,000 2,913,150 463,150
EXPENSES
Personnel services 158,500 158,500 138,099 20,401
Depregiation and amortization - - 52,373 (52,373)
Professional services 2,291,500 2,291,500 2,693,422 (401,922)
Other - - 1,710 (1,710
Tgtal Expenses 2,450,000 2,450,000 2,885,604 (435,604)
Non-Ogﬂeraﬁng Revenne (Expenses)
Non-révenue Teceipts - - 2,337 2,337
Totdl Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) - - 2,337 2,337
Net Changes in Net Position - - < 29,883 29,883
Net Position - Beginning of Year - - 2,258,126 2,258,126
. Net Posttion - End of Year $ - s - S 2288009 $ 20288009
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials
September 30, 2019
Name Paosition Insurance Company Amount Expiration
Darrep L Musselwhite Mavyor Western 5urety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Kristi%n R. K. Kelly Alderman, Ward 1 Woestern Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Charlie Hoots Alderman, Ward 2 Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Georéi&e Payne Alderman, Ward 3 Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Joel i\ifié Gallagher Alderman, Ward 4 Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
John David Wheeler Alderman, Ward 5 Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Rayn{end V. Flores, Jr. Alderman, Ward 6 Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Wi%tiaﬁ E. Brooks Afderman, At Large Western Surety Company 100,000 7/3/2020
Andrea Mullen City Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Stevel Pirtle Police Chief Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Macon Moore Police Chief Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Dan:é Scallions Fire Chief Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Chris Wilson Chief Administrative Officer Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
EdithiMcllwain Finance Director Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Lutisha Cox Comptroller Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Chris 5helton [T Director Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
JaniceiMcRee HR Generalist Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Waesley Brown Parks Director Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Jaysoti Beal Assistant Athietic Director Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
“Susarni!Miller Gift Shop Manager Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
lean Yiowell Office Manager Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Steplygn Jourdan Manager Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
John g-&ons Parks Cash Control Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Georg?a Ann Hamblin Parks Forever Young Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
LizzieE;Eason Parks Food & Beverage Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Perryii\/lason Animal Controi Supervisor ~ Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Williaiin Anderson Deputy Chief of Police Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Markié.ittle Deputy Chief of Police Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Thom%s Mastin Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Tammy T. Wright Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Cathif ynn Faxon Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Jennié r Peppers Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Wanda Gail Reynolds Court Clerk Waestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
l.etitia Brown Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Joshug Freeman Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Mary Seamans Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Terra Smith Court Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
lLatoyd Mabry Records Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Kimberly Kennedy Records Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Wendy Haire Records Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Heather Hester Records Clerk Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Kristen Coopwood Records Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Ray Hiémphrey Utility Director Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Cliff Wilkins Utility Maintenance Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Mary Ann Palmer Billing Supervisor Waestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/201%
Mariaane Chandler Carlise Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2018
Tina Hardy Billing Clerk Waestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Kristig;Wright Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials
September 30, 2019
Name Position Insurance Company Amount Expiration
Kim Turner Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2“019
tudy Diane Guerrero Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/22@19
Alecia Ferguscn Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2;[}19
Angela Moore Billing Clerk Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/%?@19
Jamie Johnson Billing Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2%; 019
Sara Tippitt Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Abby Puff Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1@ 119
Connie Lewis Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Georgia Hitt Dispatcher Waestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/%2319
Kristin Brooks Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Amanda Edmond Dispatcher Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2%@19
loyce Poole Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/.’%@)19
Vincent Ray Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2?@)19
Hunter Pogue Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2;;)19
Deborah Rosenberg Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/%@19
Baobbie Baker Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2619
Melissa Nelms Dispatcher Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/i§ D19
Kristie Kerr Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Lisa Cunningham Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2; D19
Robert Robinson Dispatcher Waestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Gary Boisseau Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/%: D19
Zachary Edmonds Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/‘..!: D19
Kristen Parrott Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Ryan Payne Dispatcher Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/2/2019
Pamela Pope Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
James White Dispatcher Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/1219
Amber White Dispatcher Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2p19
Sunita Austin Dispatcher Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Rhonda Smith Administrative Assistant Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2§i 1%
Karen White Administrative Assistant Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/ 1/2;'?19
Stephanie Paisley Administrative Assistant Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Denisa Young Administrative Assistant Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/%— D19
Renee Havens Administrative Assistant Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/ 1/%919
Lyndsey Brown Administrative Assistant Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/23)19
Teresa Ried Administrative Assistant Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2p19
Marsha Yates Administrative Assistant Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2pb19
Debbie Bounds Planning Associate Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Pam Pyle Deputy Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2p19
Ashley Ford Deputy Clerk Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Sonya Pride Deputy Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2p19
Eiissa Prewitt Deputy Clerk Woestern Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2p19
Nicole Hilario Deputy Clerk Western Surety Company 50,000 11/1/2019
Police Officers Bond Police Officer Western Surety Company 50,000 3/18/2D20
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City of Southaven, Mississippi
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Federal Grantor/ Federal
Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Pass-through Federal
Progtam Title Number Number Expenditures
]
U.S. Ei)epartment of Justice
Direct Award:
EQ:?Vard Byrne Memorial Jusitice Assitance Grant Program 16.738 $ 23,600
gE Total U.S. Department of Justice . 23,600
U.s. iﬁepartment of Transportation
Pass¢ti-through Mississippi Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-7867-00(005LPA107513-711000 49,159
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-1945-00(0011LPA104574-701000 39,055
Hzg?:way Flanning and Construction 20.205 STP-9224-00{001)LPA107536-701000 65,204
T%tal passed-through Mississippi Department of Transportation 153,458
1! ‘
Passr.’d through Mississippi Department of Public Safety:
Nahmml Priority Safety Programs 20.616 154-AL-2019-ST-34-41 69,969
Nahorza! Priority Sufety Programs 20.616 0OP-2019-0P-34-41 11,941
Te?tal passed-through Mississippi Department of Public Safety 81,910
§§ Total U.S. Department of Transportation 235,368
U.s. § epartment of Homeland Security
Dired} Award:
Asgisstance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 87,830
St 1g for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 567,535
Total U.8. Department of Homeland Security 655,365
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards . § 914,333

i
i
i
i

NOTEES T SCHEDULE:

1. Béhs of Presentation

Thia accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of the City under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2019, The informatior in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principies, and
Aldit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operaticns
of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the finzncial position, chaages in niet position, or cash flows of the City.

2. Summary of Significant Accotnting Palicies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the same basis of accounting. Such expenditures are rccogmzed following the

cogt principles contained in the Umriform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limitsd 23 to reimbursement.
é%gatlve amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years.
3. Indirect Cost Rate

The City did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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This part of the City of Southaven’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detajled

I

STATISTICAL SECTION

information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial

health.
Financial Trends
[hese schedules contain financial trends information intended to assist the reader in understand-
ing and assessing how a government’s financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City’s
ability to generate its own-source revenues-property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s

current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
>nvironment within which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make compari-

sons over time and with other governments.

&
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPL
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiseal Years
2019 2018 2017 2016 M3 2014 2013 2012 2011 20
Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capilal Assets § 54716317 § 53,695,632 B 62,629,000 $ 57,726368 § 45323310 § 42,258,077 47,426,517 46,347,370 44,265,704 48,294,598
Restrieled 4656226 1.338,692 - 103,540 4,651,144 7,610,482 1295416 1,484,241 1,123,142 5275138
Unrestrieled (49,324,055} {43,950,007) [40,551.,429) (34.977.145) (29,934.597) 4,041,609 3,102.934 2,789.532 4.985.282 857819
Total Governmental Acitivities Net Posilion 5 10088488 5 11,084,317 $ 22077571 § 22882764 § 20010457 § 53010.168 51,825.267 50.621.143 50.374.128 50.083:556
Business-Type Activitics
MNed Investment in Capilal Assets 10,536,245 8,894,009 8,608,793 2.057.964 7.880,084 7,765,721 6,564,362 6,615,179 5,564,953 4,608;627
Restricied 2,696,553 2,622,213 2,257.478 2,494,855 2,320,594 2,008,323 1,938,156 1,739,868 1,380,856 123$§534
Unrestricied 23,817,103 23,836,421 23,678,122 22,757.773 20,751,630 21342321 18.413.663 16.880.175 14.931.077 15792572
i
Tok] Business-Type Activilics Net Pesition 36,745.501 35,152,643 34,344,393 33,350,592 30,952,308 3L116.365 26916221 25248222 22,277,026 21,6395783
Primary Government
Net Investment jn Capital Asscls 3 65252562 3 62,589,641 3 71237793 $ 65824333 § 53203394 § 50,023,798 53,591,279 52,966.549 50,230,657 52,507225
Restricted 1,392,779 3,960,905 2257478 2,598,395 6,971,733 3,618,805 3,233,612 3,224,100 2,504,008 2,165,723
! Unresiricted (25.806.952) (20,113,586} (16,873,307) (12.219.372) (9.203.367) 25383.930 21516507 19,678,707 18,515,359 16,65p351
Total Primary Government Net Position § 46838380 3 46436960 3 56621964 § $6203356 § 20.57).765 § 85026833 78,741,488 75,860.365 72,651,154 717231330

NOTE: In 2013, the City implemented GASE 68 and 71
'NOTE 2: In 2018 the City implcment GASE 75
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Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, Mississippi

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPL
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Years
{accrual basis of accounting)

019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General Government 5 23494565 3 24329842 % 21905820 % 20,969,90¢ § 17,921504
Public Safety 21,603,119 21,004,797 19,701,934 19,342,389 21,618917
Public Works 7,457,365 7,000,264 6,330,087 6,147,583 6,340,767
Culture and Recreation 7,304,862 6,713,184 6,468,356 5,935,644 7,187,714
Economic Development 285,738 421,983 313,377 343,140 327,249
Health and Welfare 321,995 289,355 248,786 252,357 269,450
Interest on Long-~Term Debt 1,168,363 1,324,816 1,308,545 1,416,200 1,888,015
Drepreciztion and Amortization - - - - -
Total Governmental Acitivies Expense 61,636,007 51,144,241 56,278,805 54,407,213 55,553,626
Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer 10,302,196 10,847,545 9,805,055 9,188,270 9,122,918
Sanitation 2,915,324 2,879,974 2,742,226 2,428,315 2,607,801
Interesst on Long-Term Debt 887,749 983,152 1,031,851 906,607 1,180,621
Total Business-Type Activities 14,105,269 14,710,671 13,579,132 12,613,192 12,511,340
Total Primary Govemmenta] Expenses 75,741,276 75,854,912 69,857,937 67,020,405 68,464,966
Program Revenue
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services .
General Government 3 4,557,889 §% 3,87957% & 4,419,512 § 4,448,611 § 4,596,486
Public Safety 2,030,338 1,626,304 1,985,292 1,700,745 1,744,440
Cuiture and Recreation 4,224 956 3,059,175 3,956,251 4,001,320 4,261,062
Economic Development 257,833 225,029 190,673 223,050 135,732
Health and Welfare 12,540 13,341 16,435 15,950 14,392
Operating Grants and Contributions - - - - “
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,544,455 1,798,142 3,299,170 5,324,590 3,421,835
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 13,628,015 10,701,570 13,867,333 15,714,266 14,173,951
Business-Type Activities
Charges for Services 15,253,703 15,166,702 14,727,312 14,757,403 13,632,810
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 15,253,703 15,166,702 14727312 14,757,403 13,632,810
Total Primary Government Program Revenues 28,881,718 25 868,272 28,594,645 30,471,665 27,806,761
Net (Expenses)Revenue
Governmental Activities B 48,007,992y T (S0,442,671) § (42,411,472) § (38,692,947T) § (41,379,675)
Business-Type Activities 1,148,434 456,031 1,148,180 2,144,211 721,470
Total Primary Government Net Expense § (46,859,558 § (40986 €40) § (41263292} § (36,548,736 § (40,6$8,205)

General Revenues and Other
Changes in Net Position
Governmentzl activities:

Taxes
Property Taxes 29,150,188 26,520,649 25,515,210 24,512,212 24.205,563
Sales Taxes 15,148,740 14,846,481 14,164,401 14,502,262 13,773,583
Franchise Taxes 1,649,993 1,953,846 1,771,518 1,651,785 1,913,744
Intergovemmental - - - - -
Fines - - - - -
Rents - - - - -
interest 596,146 144,598 63350 23,735 21,510
Miscellaneous 157,085 285,758 121,700 436,260 624,281
Sale of assets - - - - -
Transfer (to) from other funds - - - - -
Total governmental activities 47,012,163 43,751,332 41,636,279 41,526,254 40,538,681

Business-type activities:

Property taxes - - - - -
Interest 190,415 28,124 25,866 28,292 1,078
Miscellaneous 58,409 324,095 15,755 225,781 21,373
‘Transfer (to) from other fands - - - - -
Sale of assets - - - - -
Total business-type activities 248,824 352,219 45,621 254,073 28,451

Total primary govermment

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities b (695,825) § (6,691,339 § (775,193} % 2,833,307 % (840,994)
Businees-type astivities 1,397,258 808,250 1,193,801 2,398,284 745,621
Total primary governments § 401,426 §  (5,883,089) § 418,608 3 5,231,591 § (91,073)
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2014 2013 2012 011 010
|
i
$ B91L832 5 9,091,210 § 10978545 § 10436592 § 8,568,555
ﬁ315,040 21,045,108 20,605,372 19,414,775 17,614,451
£,059,971 5,871,360 5,710,930 5,928,955 6,190,707
(.045,661 6,054,011 6,063,410 6,151,226 5,649,556
329,237 565,264 B28.44% 602,828 589,578
385,959 397,923 313,035 302,934 262,735
2,333,401 2,293,239 2,300,091 2,562,392 2,607,710
45,385,201 45,318,815 46,779,836 45,399,802 41,483,332
6,732,782 8,034,841 7,422,653 6,419,682 10,121,450
£,041,467 3,283,611 2,582,624 3,053,597 2,544,396
1,162,990 1,301,034 1,313,265 1,595,352 2,150,898
10,837,239 12,619.486 11,718,542 11,068,631 14,816,744
56,222,440 57,938,301 58,518,378 56,468,433 56,300,076
) 4356,739 3 586,333 § 439,389 S 327945 § 384,692
503,267 1,127,295 1,224,827 743,136 965,664
4,455,621 2,252,037 2,422,049 2,24831% 2,298,352
187,948 203,086 182,289 245,408 220,397
19,104 18,850 20,702 20,930 22,426
91,428 1,137,034 2,877,974 1,247811 1.505;3 12
10:618,107 5,324,836 7.167.230 4,834,549 5,396,350
11;833,677 11,442,827 12,474,185 10,447,424 9,820,610
114833,677 11,442,827 12,474,185 10,447,424 9,820,910
22,452,084 16,767,663 19,641,415 15,281,973 15,217,760

5 (34{767,054) § (39,993,979) § (30,632,606) § (40,565253) § (36,086,482)

996,738

(1,176,659

755,643

(621,207

(4,995.834)

$_(3370356) § (41,170,638) § (38.876,963) § (41,186460) § (41,082,316

2311,336 20,430,223 § 20,197,404 20,372,157 19,161,567
14,117,679 12,521,573 12,438,105 11,735,308 11,343,015
1331621 1,852,042 1,715,137 1,844,083 2,310,012
- 1,864,386 1,685,781 1,140,165 953,134

- 3,236,128 3,280,771 3,690,411 3,602,657

- 647,471 565,585 659,839 502,051
15,177 75,108 372,607 288,233 197,973
137,480 170,692 548,689 592,361 2,582,740
(61,268) 15,596 500 25,652 (258,405
- - - (471,797) -
34/851,995 40,793,210 40,804,579 19,876,442 40,534,454
322,952 2,723,097 3,005,658 2,672,406 2,491,907
7,446 6,196 13,440 13,086 5,900
73,008 81,546 21,600 69,166 145,072

- . - 471,797 -

- 32,819 - - -
3203405 2,844,658 3,040,698 2,226,455 2,643,879
§  ZDB4301 & 799240 5 LITLST3 § (6888110 § 4447972
200,144 1,667,999 1,796,341 2,605,248 (2,351,955)

i

§ 8785045 § 2467220 5 4968314 5 1016437 S 2096017
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Fund Balances of Governmenta} Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

)
=3
b
T
by
=
3
by
=
L
>
b
=1
=1
s

2010

2018 018 2017 016 2015

I
;
|
|

General Fund
Reserved - ’ - - - - - - - - 444,628
Unreserved - . - - - - 3,421,04
Non-Spendable 610,237 577,969 536,369 653,249 549286 519,474 559,568 524,945 462,122 -
Restricted - - - 500,000 359,606 426,048 426,048 418,783 -
Committed - 762,805 " 103,540 - 205,566 469,045 465,574 915,479 -
Assigned - - - - - - . B -
Unassigned 11,897,262 8085810 7,752,525 6,993,553  5914,77%  3.,751667 2,463,089 2,418,834 4,444,568 -

Total General Fund 12,507,490 0426674  8280,3%4 7550342 6964065 4836313 3,917,754 3,835,401 6,240,952 3,865,676

~<}

All Other Governmental Funds

Bond Fanded Capital Fand
Reserved - - - - - - " - - -
Unreserved - - - - - - - - - (1,278,46
Non-Spendable - - -
Restricted 605,530 1,300,295 - 582,839 1,273,771 4,175,797 N - - -
Committed - - - - - - - - - -
Assigned - - - . - " -
Unassigned - - (585,542) - “ - 98,27¢ - - -

Total Bond Funded Capital Fund 605,530 1,300,295 (985,542} 982,835  L,273,771 4,178,797 98,279 - - (1,378,46%)

~t

Debt Serviee Fund
Reserved - - - - - - w 565,44
Unreserved - - - - - - - (369,094)
Non-Spendable - - -
Restricted 411,091 172,941 236,715 375,625 375,162 2,062,566 1,371,809 1,628,105 982,388 -
Committed - - - - - - - - - -
Assigned - - - - - - . . - -
Unassigned - - - . - - - - (11,154 -

Totzl Debt Service Fund 411,091 172,941 236,715 375,625 375,162 2,062,566 1,371,809 1,628,105 665,234 196,37

e

Other Governmental Funds
Reserved - - - - - - - - - 505,64
Unreserved - - - - - . - - - {137,805)
Non-Spendable - - - - - - -
Restricted 4,000,696 5,575,159 37,611 - 1,952,955 1,286,805 313,063 414,100 217,828 -
Committed - - - - - “ - - - -
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned - - - {44,620) - - - - - -

Total Other Governmental Funds 4,090,696 5,575,159 37,611 (44,620y 1,952,955 1,286,805 313,063 414,100 217,828 367834

NOTES:
The decrease in the Bond Funded Captial Fund and the Other Governmental Funds is due to the spending designated fands on new infrastmichure.

Ir 2011, GASB 54 was implemented. This changed the classifications of fund balance. See page 47 and 48 for detail of the types of classificatinns.
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- City of Southaven, Mississippi
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
019 - 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Revenues
GeneralProperty Taxes 529,150,187 326,520,650 $25515310 $24512212 824205563 £21314,337 $30430223 520,197,404 § 20,372,157 % 19,161,567
Li nd Permits 843,659 735,083 794,676 739,814 762,822 656,568 586,533 435,389 327,945 384,609
Intergovérmmental 18,667,163 16,836,624 19,695,453 22,914,571 17,173,085 15,698,888 14,385,959 14,123,885 12,875,474 12,336,149
Charges; for Services 4,005,664 3,653,376 4,220,301 3,704,116 4,164,357 3,715,831 3,601,269 3,849,867 3,258,794 3,506,839
Fines 2,426,193 2,048,785 2,444,391 2,428,527 2,605,182 2,411,341 3,235,128 3,280,771 3,690,411 3,602,657
Franchige Taxes 1,949,555 1,953,846 1,771,518 1,651,785 1,513,744 2,331,621 1,832,042 1,715,137 1,844,083 2,310,012
Rents 637,679 572,905 566,889 650,788 591,742 455,007 647,471 565,585 659,839 602,051
Grant Préoeods 1,581,405 739,988 110,021 181,712 485319 91,428 1,137,034 2,877,974 1,247,811 1,505,312
Interest §; 596,147 144,567 63,350 23,735 21,510 15,177 75,108 372,607 288,233° 197,773
Miscelié?cous 167,085 476526 121,701 436261 613,714 137481 152,208 498,689 592,391 2,582,740
]
Total ﬁevenucs 60,025,177 _ 53,682,580 _ 55,503,610 _ 57,240,521 52,537,038 47,028,679 46,084,065 _ 47,921,308 45,157,138 46,189,799
Expenditiires
GeneraliGiovermment 16,205,652 13,188,958 12,786,753 10,481,117 9,455,797 7.564,745 10,514,328 7,650,605 8,068,212 7,953,761
Public Safety 22,366,428 21,497,751 20,632,711 20,360,322 19,966,943 19,782,725 19,483,184 20,295,585 18,106,522 16,716,154
Public Works 2,434,849 2,256,535 1,955,152 1,829,022 1,547,375 1,764,594 1,579,685 1,418,054 1,410,208 1,453,813
Culture pnd Recreation 5,532,514 5,410,327 5,368,482 4,571,889 4,607,535 4,677,062 4,978,858 4,936,225 4,924,617 4,552,191
Heaith a3d Welfare 348,355 313,732 274219 303,638 172,910 389,790 397,768 313,441 302,832 262,735
Tourism and Convention 285,737 421,983 313376 343,139 327,248 329,337 565,964 828,440 602,828 589,578
Capinal Qutiay 6,056,765 6,598,983 9,198,456 13,880,758 11,305,801 5,203,281 6,812,175 6,507,349 3,203,338 5,131,233
Debt Service:
Princigai 7,002,065 1,536,091 5,435,479 5,271,794 7,927,532 8,291,022 5,660,462 5,783,346 7,234,031 7,666,329
Interest 1,297,036 1,346,559 1,340,298 1,504,405 2.361,820 1971481 2,108,642 1,952,024 2,524,747 2,619,645
I Cost - 46,548 - - 206,786 413,535 87,761 - 196,897 113,934
AgentFees - - - - 1,250 39,227 - 14,363 114,599 -
Total Expenditures 61,525,801 58,617,467 57,304,926 58,946,084 58,381,005 50,426,800 52,198,831 49,789,445 465,688,831 47.059,373
Excessi(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over(Under) Expenditures (1,504,624) _ (4.834,887) _ (1.801,316) _ (3,705,563) _ (5.843567) _ (3.398.121) _ (6,114,766) (1,868,137 (1,531,693) (869,574
Other Fi jak Sources (uses)
Sale of Assets 2,520,635 8,453 158,598 3,7%¢ 604,333 45,620 75,550 500 25,652 13.412
(Grant Prdceed - - - - 2,677,520 - : - - - . -
Interfund Transfers - - - . - - - 50,000 #71,797) -
Loan Proceeds - - - - - - - - 774,283 1,402,605
i{ssuancg bf debt - 13,176,742 - - - 5,455,000 2,893,395 - - 6,652,205
Refunding Bood Proceeds - - - - 6,870,000 7,945,000 3,615,000 - 6,730,000 -
Paymentio Bond Escrow Agent - - - - {6,400,000}  (7,700,000) (3,010,345) - (3,300,000}  (3,535,000)
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt - - - - - - . -
Premiv; “ - - - 202,586 277,077 93,107 - - -
Lease Proceed - - 316,710 - - 2,871,358 271,208 268,624 255,818
Total Ofher Financing Sources 2,520,635 13,185,195 515,308 3,796 4,044,438 10,062,697 5,938,065 321,729 4,026,762 4,785,040
Net Chdpge in Fond Balance 1,016,011 8,250,308 (1,286,008)  (1,70L,767)  {1,799.528) 6,664,576 (176,701)  (1,546,408) 2,495,069 3,919,468
Fund Balance-Beginning of Year 16,598,805 7,578,178 8,864,186 10,565,853 12,365,481 5,700,905 5,877,506 7,424,014 3,051417 (868,049)
Equity Transfers - - - - - - . -

Prior Péfiod Adjustment - - - - ~ - « - 1.877,528 -
Fund B End of Year 17,614,816 15,528,486 7,578,178 3.864,186 _ 10.565.953 12,365,481 5,700,905 5.877,606 1424014 3,051,417
Debt sendice as a percentage of
néacapirai expenditures 14.19% 16.06% 13.90% 14.07% 20.34% 23.02% 18.07% 18.53% 21.98% 26.10%
. a9
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Assessed Value and Actual Valae of Taxable Property
Last Ten Figcal Years
{amounls express in thousands}

Real Property* Personal Property. Utilities Automobiles Total . Tota

Fiscal Asgessed Actual Assessed Actuat Assessed Agrual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed  Direcl

Year Value VYalug Value Value Valug Value Valug Value Valye Value 10 Actual  Raig
2019 442,189 3,684,508 72,042 540,350 14,344 47,813 83795 278,317 612,370 4,612,388 3% 04373
2018 401,273 3,343,942 62,843 523,733 14,238 41,993 79,865 266,217 558,324 4,181,685 13% 04373
0817 378,593 3,154,942 59,559 456,325 13,860 46200 76,807 256357 528,919 3,953,823 13% 0.4373
2016 360,370 3,003,083 61,515 512,658 13,068 43,560 71,530 238,433 506,487 3,197,735 13% 04373
2015 342,002 2,850,017 55372 369,147 12356 41,187 66,440 221,467 476,170 3,481,817 4% 047
2014 334,544 2,787,867 51,101 340,673 12,182 40,372 62,618 208,727 460,375 3,377,640 14% 04373
2013 321,985 2,683,208 127,387 849,247 11,864 39,547 60,129 200,430 521,365 3,772,432 14% 04373
2012 348,545 2,904,542 114496 763307 10,822 36,673 59,406 198,020 533,268 3,901,942 14%  0.4373
2031 345,194 2,876,617 106,374 709,160 9,666 32,287 57,638 192,127 518,892 3,810,190 14% 0.4373
2010 341,917 2,849,308 47,880 318,200 8,750 29,167 57,162 130,540 455,709 3,388,215 13% 04373

*  Per the Despto County Tax A real properTy is not $op d by class (I and 2) and therfore

the City use the actual value of the real property.
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e CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPRE
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
City of Southavea DeSoto County DeSoto County School District Northwest Community Collepe
Grand
Fisca Qperating Drebt Sanitation Toral Operating Debt Toral Optrating Dcbt Total Operating Debt Total Total
Y ear Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Miilage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage
2419 3192 10.81 - 43.73 34.34 6.18 41,02 4035 13.22 53.57 1.9% 212 4,11 142.43
bt 3143 1230 - 4173 3484 6.18 41.02 4035 1322 53.57 199 .12 411 142.43
2017 30.80 1293 - 43.73 34.84 6.18 41.02 40.35 1322 53.57 199 212 4.11 142.43
2416 27.67 16.06 - 43,73 34.84 6.18 4102 40.35 322 53.57 19% 2,12 411 142.43
2415 27.67 16.06 - 43.73 34.84 6.18 41.02 4035 1322 53.57 1.99 2,12 4.11 142,43
2014 2236 1537 6.00 43.73 34.84 6.18 4102 40.35 1322 53.57 1.99 2,12 4.11 142.43
2413 23512 14.61 6.00 43.73 35.64 538 4102 3835 1422 53.57 1.99 2.12 4,11 142.43
2012 21.13 16.60 £.00 43.73 35.64 538 41.02 35.3% 422 53.57 199 212 4.11 142,43
201 2L13 16.50 6.00 4375 3544 558 4102 3935 i4.22 53.57 1,99 212 4.11 142.43
2010 21.53 1620 6.00 43.73 - 3544 5.58 4102 39.35 1422 53.57 159 z12 4.11 14243
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Eight Years Ago
(amount expressed in thousands)

2019 2011
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable * Total Taxable Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Valuation* Value Rank Valuation
Personal Property
Helen of Troy LP 5605 1 1.11% 5,344 2 1.03%
Mid-South Outlet Shops LLC 4781 2 0.94%
GPT 8650 Commerce Dr. Owner LLC 3943 3 0.78%
LIT Industrial LP 3553 4 0.70% 3,704 6 0.71%
US industrial RIET il 3340 5 0.66% 3,242 7 0.63%
Pancal Southaven Two 128 LLC 3242 6 0.64% 3,017 8 0.58%
Civic Center 2 Apartments LLC 3228 7 0.64%
Civic Center 1 Apartments LLC 2909 8 0.57%
Southaven Desoto Investment 2418 9 0.48%
Southaven Towne Center i LLC 2382 10 0.47%
Seven States Southaven LLC 51007 1 5.84%
US Tndustrial RIET IT-Midwest 3,704 3 0.71%
Hillwood Lit LP 3,516 4 0.68%
Blenhsim DeSoto Holding LLC 3,357 5 0.65%
Somerset DeSoto Holdings -2,967 8 0.57%
Associated Wholesale Grocers 2,030 0 0.39%

NOTE: The City did not accumulate this data prior to 2011

* The total assessed valuation for 2019 is $612,370,809
** The total assessed valuation for 2011 is $518,624,300
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPE
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Collected within the Fiscal Total Collections
Taxes Levied Year of the Levy Collection in To Date
Fisgal for the Fiscal Percentage Subsequent Percentage
Year Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
019 29,386 29,037 99% - 29,037 99%
018 27,022 26,521 98% 16 26,537 98%
017 25,731 24,428 95% 75 24,503 95%
016 24,765 23,438 95% 26 23,464 95%
015 23,430 23,117 99% 68 23,185 99%
014 22,747 22,186 98% 91 22277 98%
013 25277 22,898 91% 2,214 25,112 99%
2012 23,262 22,573 97% 50 22,623 97%
2011 22,679 21,749 96% 121 21,870 96%
2010 21,089 20,656 98% 146 20,802 99%

*Th

o

information prior to 2008 was not accurnulated.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPT
Ratios of Outstonding Debt by Type

Lest Ten Fiseal Yoars
Givernmetnl Activities Business-typt: Activitics
General Water &
Obligaticn DOthor Sewer
Bonds General General Stare Totad Fercentage
Fiscal Revenue & Capital {bligntion Obligation Capien] Revolying {Detstanding Personal Debt Per Of Personal

| Year Tax Bonderhr Leagey Dbt Bonds Lenses Loans Debt locomg * Topuintion*d Capita Ineome

4 2018 35,033,358 - 4,149,540 16,365,537 E9.010 14,564,726 70,282,171 40,702 54,544 127916 233%
L 2048 A0, TALBED - 5531105 17,786,108 135,153 15,833,388 80,029,623 AR702 54031 148138 214%
; 2017 39,656,381 264263 493,943 19,105,071 158,548 16,976,459 76,894,665 39,461 53214 1,445.01 2.92%
H 2016 45,179,335 - 381,975 20358255 250310 18,004,538 84,483,413 38,386 52589 1,606.48 3.05%
H 201s 50,336,531 71,508 716,446 20,670,610 317,548 18,596,940 90,710,583 36,375 51,824 1,750.26 3.38%
\ 2014 54,885,547 2336812 1,604,674 21,680,254 373267 15,746,180 96,226,874 36242 50897 1,886,491 370%
H 2013 49,173,977 2,815,514 4,766,994 prv Ay 426,868 12,065,628 92,888,960 35374 30374 1,843.39 3.66%
% 2012 50,627,574 444,715 5,281,897 13,940,848 478,146 10,412,837 01,186,017 35,772 50,374 1,810,18 3.59%
: 2011 54,414,653 421,864 6,921,865 25,290,556 527254 9,602,012 97,178,244 33,65] 43,687 195581 394%
i 2010 54,360,016 2,101,878 9,294,805 26,787,122 574401 10,163,545 103,489,070 3178 48,982 2,112.80 431%
B * .8, Bureau of FEconomic Analysis Stalisties for DeSole Coutry

g U.S, Census Byreou
s ‘Thit includes tnamartiord premiums and disconnts
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CITY OF SOUTHAVYEN, MISSISSIPPI
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Gross Percentage of
Assessed General Less Debt Net GO Assessed Net Bonded
Fisca] Estimated Property Obligation Service Bonded Taxable Value Debt Per
Year: Population Value* Bonds* Funds Debt of Property Capita
20;:9 54.9 612,371 49,674 411 49,263 8.04% 897.32
20?8 54.0 558,324 55,968 172 55,796 9.99% 1,033.26
205*%7 532 528,815 55,601 236 55,365 10.47% 1,040.70
20% 52.6 506,720 61,117 375 60,742 11.99% 1,154.79
2015 51.8 476,170 55,347 375 54,972 11.54% 1,061.24
20%24 50.9 460,573 59,410 2,062 57,348 12.45% 1,126.68
20@_‘3 50.4 521,365 54,019 1,372 52,647 10.10% 1,044.58
ZOEIEZ 504 533,269 52,363 1,628 50,735 9.51% 1,006.65
Zt)iéiil 49.7 518,892 56,494 965 55,529 10.70% 1,117.28
2010 49.0 455,709 56,616 196 56,420 12.38% 1,151.43

* Thisiamount inchides unamortized premiums and discounts
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Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Jurisdiction

Direct:
City of Southaven

Overlapping:
None

Total all

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

As of September 30, 2019
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Amount Percentage
Applicable Applicable
Debt to to
Outstanding Government Government
38,545 38,545 100%
0 0 0
38,545 38,545
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2018 2018 2017 201 015 2014 2013 2012 2011 010

Debtlg?nit(w%) $ 9185 § 83,749 § 79322 § 75488 § 71,426 § 69,086 $78,205 $79,792 $77,793 § 65479
Total :i:ét GO Debt Applicable to

Limit 38,401 43,510 48,220 52,680 47,610 50,945 48290 46350 47,355 54,640
Legal Debt Margin $ 53455 § 40239 § 31102 § 22808 § 23816 § 18,141 $20915 $33,442 §$30438 $ 10,839
Totzl Met Debt Applicable to the

Limit §§s a Percentage of the

Debt Limit 41.8% 52.0%  60.8% 69.8% 66.7% 3.7%  61.7%  58.1%  60.5%  83.4%
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands}

Net
Water and Water and Revenue
Sewer Sewer Availahle
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt Debt Service Requirements
Year Revenue Expenses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2019 12,399 8,103 4,296 1,320 562 1,882 44%
2018 13,128 8,309 4,819 1,299 593 1,894 9%
2017 12,187 7,264 4,923 1,298 633 1,931 39%
2016 12,498 6,610 5,888 1,260 691 1,951 33%
2015 11,630 7,380 4,250 1,155 830 1,985 47%
2014 11,503 5,154 6.349 1,105 873 1,978 31%
2013 14,248 9,763 4,485 1,015 1,065 2,080 46%
2012 15,501 3,564 11,937 1,468 1,085 2,554 21%
2011 13,189 7,878 5,311 1,587 1,202 2,789 53%
2010 12,459 11,074 1,385 1,425 1,245 2,670 193%

NOTE: Principal and interest do not include notes payable that are paid through sales tax.

Note: An improvement fee is collected on services provided that is used to pay revemue backed debt.
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fisg:ial Estimated Per Capita School Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment
Year Population * Income ** Enrollment *** Rate City **+* Rate State**** Rate Nation****
i

ZO:lES’ 54,944 40,258 34,752 4.30% 5.40% 3.50%
201: 54,031 40,258 34,392 3.30% 4.30% 3.70%
2055 53,214 39,461 33,991 3.50% 5.20% 4.20%
20i§6 52,589 38,386 33,537 4.10% 3.70% 4.90%
2015 51,824 36,375 33,140 3.50% 5.50% 4.90%
2014 50,997 36,242 33,054 4.60% 7.70% 5.90%
2013 50,374 35,374 32,759 5.93% 9.05% 7.68%
2012 50,374 35,037 32,311 6.14% 9.16% 8.08%
2011 49,687 33,651 31,916 6.78% 10.49% 8.95%
2010 48,982 31,779 31,228 6.87% 10.54% 9.63%

*T. 8; Census Burean

** .13, Bureau of Economic Analysis

*#*Office of Research and Statistics, Mississippi Department of Education’s website

#kkd

Wnited States Department of Labor
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
Principal Employers
Current and Last Fiscal Years
2019 2012
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
Baptist Memorial Hospital 1,930 1 1,627 1
DeSoto County School District 911 2 780 2
City of Southaven 461 3 403 4
Agsociated Wholesale Grocers 450 4 265 9
‘Wal-Mart 415 5 600 3
Future Electronics 340 6 300 5
DeSoto County Civic Center 314 7 300 6
Seimens Industry 335 8 300 7
Halyard Health 241 9 - -
ScanSource 220 10 220 10
Thomas and Betts 300 8

Source: Mississippi Development Authority, October 2013 and November 2012, Desoto
County Economic Development Council.

NOTE: This information was not accumulated prior to 2012

110




Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, Mississippi

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
Full-Time Equivalent City and Government Employees by Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years ;
Department 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 :
Arts & Culture 2 5 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 4
Court 10 15 16 12 13 13 14 17 17 16
City P%ttomey 2 2 * * * * * * *
Generjl Administration 4 5 5 5 3 6 6 7 4
Information Technology 4 5 6 5 2 25 25 26 30 30
City Clerk 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Building 6 5 4 4 0 * * * * *
Envirdhmental 2 2 2 2 1 * * * *
Plannigg 6 7 6 6 9 16 17 is 16 14
Police 135 153 144 143 122 132 135 132 123 136
Fire 112 120 115 108 123 116 137 117 127 127
Public;Works 11 11 10 10 14 12 13 15 21 19 |
Parks 35 76 32 52 50 49 54 53 48 54
Municgpal Code Enforcement 7 8 8 g 5 5 5 5 5 6 i
Utilitiss 24 30 24 22 27 27 27 a1 32 36
Sanditafion 4 * * 3 3 3 2 2 2 2
389 449 403 390 403 413 424 428 437 454
Note 13 The City's 8 elected officials (Mayor and 7 Aldermen) are not included in the
number above
Note 23 The City did not accumulate this data prior to 2009.
Note 3i Beginning in 2004 dispatchers were moved from Police to Information
Technplogy .
111
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CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPRI
QOperating Indicators by Funetion/Program

Last Ten Years
Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2615 2016 2017 2018 2019
Police
Calls for service 41,534 50,425 1,752 70,260 67,521 79,162 §9,343 57,543 62,765 59,850
Tickets issued 19,952 21,417 17,707 17,322 21,894 21,193 16,844 1574 14,608 15,371
Arrests 3,870 3,400 2,952 2,540 3611 4,281 4,748 3,814 3,586 3,904
Fire
Total Incidents 2,154 2,047 2,152 2,510 2,570 2,833 3,497 3,561 3,711 3,826
Building Fires 42 27 41 44 4% k3 ¢ 20 37 34 34
EMS Transport Calls * * 4,433 5,004 5389 4,130 4,218 4,460 4411 4,483
Total Inspections 2,417 3,718 4,005 4,331 4,197 5,194 4,925 6,190 4,712 5,528
Sanitation
Recycling trailers (pounds) 621,530 469,560 468,030 531,000 401,000 338,000 364,322 438510 395,896 395,896
Curbside Recyeling {tons) * 1,775 1,301 1,408 1,273 792 639 554 400 400
Municipal Code Enforcement
Crdinance Violations 839 1,033 1,462 2334 2,156 3121 4,449 4,671 4475 4,525
‘Water
Average Daily consgmption (gellons) * 4,400,000 4,400,000 4,500,000 4,530,000 4,590,000 4,485,000 4,530,000 4,551,500
“Water siorage capacity {gallons) 4,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000 5,250,000
* An asterisk (*) indicales the department had not previously recorded or performed the Function/Program
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Funetibn/Program

Police
Sta

0S

Pairgl units

Othé

Fire
Stati

vehicles

s

Ladder trucks

Fire #ngines
Resq}gle vehicles

H
i

Parks éﬁnd recreations

Parkizs
Golf

Courses

Temé.ls Courts
Bassball/Softball Fields

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPT

Capiial Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Years
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2 2 2 z 2 2 2 2 2 2
59 102 103 100 109 112 120 118 9 92
21 26 3] 45 38 30 31 31 49 50
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 7 7
5 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 8 g
25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
1 H 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 12 12 12
25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
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REPORTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE
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~ FORTENBERRYYBALLARD, PC

Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, Mississippi
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Mayor and Board of Aldermen

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
City of Southaven, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Southaven, Mississippi as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
thereon dated March 4, 2020.

collectively comprise City of Southaven’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

1929 SPILLWAY ROAD, SUITE B
BRANDON, MISSISSIPP 39047
TELEPHONE 601-992-:5292 FAX601-202-2033
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oy

Compliance and Other Matters

A

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Southaven’s financial
§%tatements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
eertam provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
Wlnch could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement

~amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

ébj ective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

i
i
1
i

Ii?urpose of this Report

’g"he purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
¢ompliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit per-
j;'ormed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
gontrol and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
}Eiowever, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.
|
?
H

forTeudects 4 Bairans, F

: ortenberry & Ballard, PC Certified Public Accountants
March 4, 2020
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FORTENBERRYBALLARD, PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Southaven, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Southaven’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the
City’s major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2019. City of Southaven’s major
federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance on the City of Southaven’s major
federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our andit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guid-
ance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumnstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s
compliance.

1929 SPILLWAY ROAD, SUITEB
BRANDON, MISSISSIPPI 32047
TELEPHONE 60 1-992-5292 FAX 601-292-2033
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e

Jpinion on Its Major Federal Program

=

n our opinion, the City of Southaven, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the
ypes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
n its major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2019.

Qr"}

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

b

lanagement of the City of Southaven, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintain-
ing effective mnternal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements

>ferred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
matenal effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
\mth the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
G:f internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effective-

nf:ss of the City’s internal control over compliance.
|

- P

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
oVer compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
ﬂéelr assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
dEmphance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
c:{ ntrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
c% mpliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
gpompliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
z{i)timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
¢pmbination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
=quirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
ver compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

(gur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
tiae first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
qpntrol over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
npt 1dentify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
\geakuesses However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Lhe purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
G@.n' testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
féqmrements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
pmpose However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

fokTevbects 4 BaLiake, FC

‘ortenberry & Ballard, PC Certified Public Accountants
arch 4, 2020

. b
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~FORTENBERRYBALLARD, PC_
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Southaven, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Southaven,
Mississippi as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, which collectively comprise the
City of Southaven’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 4,
2020. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govern-
ment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with all state laws and regulations
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and
regulations and our audit of the financial statements did not disclose any instances of
noncompliance with other state laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City’s management, federal
awarding agencies, the Office of the State Auditor and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report
is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

ﬁm//edﬁé«&';; 7’ BaLL4RS, FC

Fortenberry & Ballard, PC Certified Public Accountants
March 4, 2020

1929 SPILLWAY ROAD, SUITE B
BRANDON, MISSISSIPFP] 32047
TELEPHONE 60 1-892-5292 FAX801-992-2033
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S

City of Southaven, Mississippi

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Section I: Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements:

L. Type of auditor’s report issued:

Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No.

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported.
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No.
Federal Awards:
4. Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No.

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported.
5. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for

mMajor programs: Unmodified
6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No.
7. Identification of major program:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

97.083 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER)

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II: Financial Statements Findings

Yes.

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings related to the financial statements that are

required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards.
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[# 23

yection IIT: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

[ |

‘he results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs related to the financial
wards.

jav)
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RJ Young Company - Nashville (616)253-8551 Page { 1of2
P.0. Box 40623 Nashville, TN 37204 (800)247-1955 Order# GMMEOD
Purchase Agreement Customer Purchase Order SalesRep# 108A18
Billing Location Insfall Locafion
Full Custenar Nams — Include Inc., Corp., LLC ete. Customer Name
City Of Southaven City Of Southaven
Department County
Street Address Street Address
8710 Northwest Dr 3656 Pine Tar Alley
City State Zip+d City ‘ State Zip+d
Southaven MS 38671 Southaven MS 38672
Contact Name Phone # Fax# Meter t;cntact Phone # Fax#
Wes Brown 6628907275 Wes Brown 6628907275
Email Ematt
wbrown@southaven.org
Cty. Manufacturer Equip. iD Madel Serial Number Unit Price Amotnt
1 Ricoh MP C307
1 Ricoh MPC305 Medium Cabinet
1 Ricoh Paper Feed Unit PB1080 (500 sheets)
Trade-In/Buyout {|ferms to be picked up) Tolat This Page
Total From Addl
Equiprment List 873.75
Sales Tax
[5]
TaxEu:‘;ecﬁ‘ tempﬁ:nchftEﬁcate No Tota! £873.75
1) The equipment specified above will be provided at the following rates:
Gommencement Date SMP/Maintenance Total Minimum Payment Minimum Billing Frequency Qverage Billing Frejuency
SMP Monthly Monthly
Monthiy Minimum Overage Rate per Monthly Minlmum Overage Rate per Aureement Includes
Number of B&W Copies Ba&W Copy Number of Color Copies Coler Copy ® Yesg Ne  Master Unit
0 0.009000 0 0.058060 ® Yes O No  Golor Supplie
— — ® Yes O No Drum/Photo Gonductor
Manthly Minimur Qverage Rate per Monthly Mfmmum Ove:?age Rate per W Yes O No Imaging Unis
Number of Sguare Faet Square Foot Number of Linear Feet Linear Foot mYes O No Pards/Labor
® Yes O No TonerDispersant
n i
Monthly Mirimum Qverage Rate par Monthly Minirumn Overage Rate per u :::: : :2 gtcer]v::oper Er
Number of B&WY Prints B&W Print Number of Coler Prints Color Print T New Account B Tow Ecﬁl et
- o Upgrade 0 Remanufactured
Monthly Minimum Overage Rate per Monthly Minfmum Overage Rate per @ Additional Unit Equipment
Number of Mise Misc Number of Misc 2 Misc 2 9 MAM g Used
p Yes g No MICR Toner
Remarks:
—_,
2N e od
Signa re A dezezze ™ /AC’.:.\‘\ ) Sales Rep: Date:
' Zid ME
Prnt Ng IM 2%
R
Title: %es Manager: Date:
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Order # GMMHCO Page 20of2

The title to any and all preducts listed on the Sales Order remain with RJ Young Company (RJY) until full payment is received from you.
Invpices are payable upon receipt uniess prior written approval is received from the RJY corporate offices.

Without prior written approval of RJY you may not assign any of your rights or obligations under this Agreement or allow a lien or
enclmbrance of any kind io be placed upon any products for which you have not received tile free and clear.

If payment is not paid when due, you will pay us a late charge of up to 15% of the amount of the payment or $15.00 whichever is greater
{orsuch lesser rate as is maximum rate allowed under applicabie [aw). You also agree to pay $35.00 for each returned check. Restrictive
endorsements or additional terms on checks you send to us will net reduce your obligations to us.

If pié yrment is not paid when due, we will have the right to take ONE OR MORE of the following actions, in addition to any and afi other
remedies that may be available to us under the law: (a} cancel this agreement without prior notice or waming {o you; (b) file a iaw suit
against you to callect all past due amounts, plus all our reasonable legal costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees,
rea;éonable overhead for employee time spent on preparing for suit or attempting to collect payments and mitigate our damages; (c)
repéiéssess the Equipment or apply to @ court for an order allowing repossession for any Equipment for which you have not received fitle
freeiand clear.

This Agreement, and other terms and conditions that you have acknowledged receipt of by signing this Sales Order, constitute the entire
Agreement.

As % convenience to you and to further expedite this transaction for you, you agree that a photocopy, electronic image or facsimile of this
Agreement which includes a photocopy, efectronic image or facsimile of the signatures of both parties shall be as valid, authentic and
legally binding as the original version for all pusposes and shall be admissible in court as final and conclusive evidence of this transaction

and:of the execution of this document.

SMP AND/OR MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

The foiigowing terms and conditions are in addition to the General Terms and Conditions above.

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

Seréjice includes both labor and material for adjustments, repairs and replacement of parts as necessitated by normal equipment usage.
Alség included are regularly scheduled preventive maintenance and emergency service subject to provisions. The charge is based an the
otiginal geographic installation location of the machine and RJY must be notified whenever the geographical location of the equipment is
¢h Eged. If the equipment has been moved to a new RJY service zone, a new agreement must be reached. For efficient and electronic
meder reading, RJY ufilizes specialized software that reports current meter readings on all print devices connected to your Network,
Customer agrees that meters may be accessed and reported in this manner. Should the number of scans exceed the total of ail prints
andcopies, we reserve the right to invoice these excess scans at $.0025 per scan. This agreement does not cover overhauls on the

/ice calls will be made during normal business hours at the specified installation address. (Business heurs are 8:00 a.m. fo 5:00 p.m.,
Moniday to Friday}. Travel and labor time on calls made other than during normal business hours will be charged to Customer at
estaégaﬁshed overtime rates.

Metégr cards or fax forms will be provided to the Customer for monthly or quarterly billings. If forms are not received by the required date,
an %Estimated meter will be used for billing purposes.

Cuéﬁomer agrees to make available a Meter Contact for training purposes in the use of the equipment and agrees to notify RJY of any
chapge in the Meter Contact assignment.

i
Seryice will not be provided on equipment upon which there has been used unauthorized parts ar supplies or that has been modified ar
used by unauthorized personnel to repair or change said equipment, Master or drums will not be replaced under this agreement when
da g.age is caused by operator abuse or error. An initial master or drum charge may be required on oider equipment.

This: agreement shall be effective on the date of delivery of equipment if new equipment, otherwise on the commencement date fisted on
the gontract and shall continue for a period of 12 months from the date and will automnatically renew for consecutive 12 month periods

unlgks written canceltation notice is given by either party 30 days prior to the end of the then current term. In the event of cancellation of
this jagreement for any reason, unused supplies shall be the property of RJY, although Customer may purchase the supplies at the then
prevailing retail rates. Customer agrees to pay the periodic charges and upen failure to do so RJY may (1) terminate the agreement, (2)

H a . . -
refuéée to service the equipment or fumish supplies, (3) recover damages as a result thereof. l City will be notified before any increase.

At tl;Ie end of each contract anniversary date, the-rate-charge-camincrease-withoutwitternotice-to-afiow-for-costinereases:

This agreement is not refundabie or transferrable to a third party. If the equipment is traded in on new equipment, any unused portion of
the gontract period charge shall be prorated and credited fo the Customer.

Th%{agreement may not be assigned by Customer without the written consent of RJY. This instrument contains the entire agreement
between the parties and cannot be altered or amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. Any agreement
conﬁainmg variations from the printed terms set forth herein must be accepted and counter-signed by an officer of RJY at its offices in
Nashville, Tennessee.

i
Sales or use tax shail be added where applicable,
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RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI FOR DECLARATION OF
EMERGENCY EXPENDITURE

WHEREAS, the City of Southaven (“City”) pursuant to Mississippi Code Section 31-7-
13(k) hereby ratifies the expenditures associated with the emergency services for cleaning of
City Facilities for the immediate preservation of order and public health during the COVID-19
Pandemic; and

WHEREAS, the City’s recently contracted janitorial company was supposed to begin on
April 1, 2020; however, due to the issues from the COVID-19 Pandemic, the entity is not able to
start until May 1, 2020; and :

WHEREAS, the City needed to ensure that the City Facilities were clean and sanitized
during the COVID-19 Pandemic for the health and safety of the City’s citizens; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY,
ACTING FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to Mississippi Code 31-7-13(k) and recommendation of the
City’s Public Works Director and ensuring of the sanitization of the City Facilities, the City
Board ratifies the expenditures in the amount of $3.,426.75 for D&J Cleaners and Overall
Chemical as set forth in Exhibit A, for cleaning of City Facilities. In addition, the City ratifies
the other costs which will be incurred by both entities during the remainder of April 2020.

SECTION 2. On behalf of the City, the Mayor or his designee is authorized to take all
actions to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

Following the reading of the foregoing resolution, Alderman Payne made the motion to adopt the
Resolution and Alderman Gallagher seconded the motion for its adoption. The Mayor put the
question to a roll call vote and the result was as follows:

Alderman Brooks YES
Alderman Kelly YES
Alderman Hoots YES
Alderman Payne YES
Alderman Gallagher YES
Alderman Wheeler YES

Alderman Flores YES | il
RESOLVED AND DONE, this 21 day of April, 2024. /% i

bARREN MUSSELWHITE, MAYOR

molm SIS

CITY CLERK
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EXHIBIT A
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OVERALL CHEMICAL COMPANY I nvo i ce
P.O. BOX 1813 .
MEMPHIS, TN 38101 Date Invoice #
3/16/2020 5151
Bill To
CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
8710 NORTHWEST DRIVE
SOUTHAVEN, MS 38671
P.O. No, Terms Bue Date
MNet 15 3/31/2020
flem Descriptlon Qty Rate ) Serviced Amount
COURT HOUSE | CLEANING COURT WK OF 03/09/2020 640.00 040,00
c$uHo.
o (L BANG weede.
: Ay
ot 31420
o 901 ~0I4dL
THANK. YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS. IT IS A PLEASURE TO HAVE YOU FOR A
CUSTOMER, Subtotal $640.00
Sales Tax (0.0%) $0.00
Total $640.00
"
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OVERALL CHEMICAL COMPANY

P.0. BOX 1813
MEMPHIS, TN 38101

{ Bill To

|

i

I

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
8710 NORTHWEST DRIVE
SOUTHAVEN, MS 38671

H
H
H
E

£

EE
H

|
!
|

Invoice

Pate

Invoica #

4/14/2020

5155

P.O. No, Tarms

Due Date

Net 15

4/29/2020

fem Description

Qty

Rate Serviced

Amournt

e e e b st g

COURE HOUSE | CLEANING COURT WK OF 4/06/2020

s P23
R ’J!CJ(D o

Slst il:"l_/.lf-él:l:l\f }@ weel
el Aluha
il G0 -Uleqer

640.00

640.00

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS, IT IS A PLEASURE TO HAVE YOU FOR A
CUSTOMER.

Subtotal

$640.00

Sales Tax (0.0%)

$0.00

Total

$640.00
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o

OVERALL CHEMICAL COMPANY EnVO i ce
P.O.BOX 1813 :
MEMPHIS, TN 38101 Date Invoice #
4/8/2020 5154
Bitl To
CITY OF SOUTHAVEN
8710 NORTHWEST DRIVE
SOUTHAVEN, MS 38671
P.O. No. Terms Due Date
Net 15 4/23/2020
ltem Dasgription Qty Rate Serviced Armount
COURT HOUSE | CLEANING COURT Wi OF 3/30/2020 640.00 640.00
. { T ngj ] L, o
a2 S5
i r e
if 3 / 3ef20do
Py . 35‘ 1 T i )
s L 0L 020900
THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS. ITIS A PLEASURE TO HAVE YOU FOR A
CUSTOMER. Subtotal $640.00
Sales Tax (0,0%) £0.00

Total

$640.00
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- Contractors Invoice -

/" WORK PERFORMED AT:

W Ryadley Walliee, | Whst /jrecmmL
Director #@Oefa#ons 7220 1.8. 5/
(vl 0¥ Ssuthaven , mis Southaven, Me. 33637

CONTE 1 YOUR WORK ORDER NO. OUR BID NO,

041 03 2020 S5125 725 B )

‘DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED |

E
[ D LJ-/mmeA and m(mped Lle #/oars
Oust furniture in open D#f(‘&‘)‘
Cleaned alogs dovrs. |
& Clagred bothmoms , $ltors, l: xlur&zs
S Clepned BiHehen arecs,
b L leaned. Mestina rooms ardas.
7 Clepned (A)eg -mam aréss .
& Voo Carped )
1. Empld frash. . .
f

b, Wipedlian ﬂﬁﬂ&@a&wzﬂéﬂwmmh@ns ,

s L ——

"DV I5 Claning,_Services

g g 250 ) A0 —F?Jresha}e 2
v a1 —— Hom (.01{8, Ms 35637
T e e DWWﬂ&@ Alips - Guiner
;ﬁ'ﬁ?i."-f.-"ff'f’,_,;ﬁﬁﬂﬁ 60 _ @0/) Yqy - 3305
b TN “r(lgggnﬁ of
S \N@;f- Prechef
T OO :ﬁg_w;wzgzlmzw —

-
i

w
E'

Vo da#

N v

All Material is guaranteed 1o he as specified, and the above work was performed int accordance wnth the drawings and specifications provided for the

above work ani% was completed in a substantial workmaniike manner for the agreed sum of

-/
Dollars ($ ‘j m }

Thislsa E}Parﬁat @g?ka due and payable by: _ - b C,ﬁ ?q _ Z{?ﬁ@ :
In accordance im'm our {L4Agreement [JProposal Q'zé %5 Dated m(? C‘fy : 25 0%
Y

; Y
&E edams 108152 : l 112
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¢/ WORK PERFORMED AT

Contractors Invoice

" MR Pradles Wallace. Southorvm Lolice. Dept

Dlrmﬁw of f’)aera#ons R ge91 /VOr#)WEa DR .

uu n, Ms - Southoven, Ns 38637,

YOUR WORK ORDER NO OUH 81D NG,

87;2 7652

% -~‘%z»

- DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED - -

A

I { ust and. /740/%%/ Lle and //m v/ f[w:s

55’: DistLur. ;lure, N oyen /)#mes

. Cleaned cilass doors -

45 Cleaned Dathrooms, »L’/mrs i/Hu res,

5. Cleaned Kidehen areas.

b .0leaned Measling Looms.

7, Vaccum Carpeds

& Emphs tmsh.

9/, I );n@f ao/ozvn /‘ﬁyﬂ#f/ms /)/Jnnps, ﬁgmﬂm@rWs

w___ T S, (DQL Ué“ [']ean; nea &’I’VJT&&
- 1 (a8 forestops’ B

I’

e et | Hom lake JIS, 38637

_ Dwayre, B. Atins —0 Wner

t . \
Ty 2ADE ] , '
SRS = n e—— Y /7 W V7] Y VY
b et yaizems i " — . .
Pt S 990,00 9] e
‘ v pledmng of <
Mn ﬂ ok Y
, rU_W*—’(r l\_/\/!zl " - ' \
RIS D LRl VL CY R
- - . | y
: A) Materiaf is guaranteed o be as specifiad, and the abeve work was performed in accordance with the drawings and specifications provided for the
aiz ove work and was completed in a substaniial workmanlike manner for the agread sum of
: Do[iars {5 3:5@
' Tnss isa D)Partial Bﬁiiym due and payable by: __- O q go\;}o
¥ 247
:r! accordance with our Agreement [_Proposal No. o%@@ Dated _- 0 le’ ' M J M
& atems TCB122 C bl 1112
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~ Contractors Invoice
#"WORK PERFORMED AT: g
MK Pradley M//aca | /855 (/@jfera e bn
I 1 bt A0S Sodhaven NMs 38637
__Cily 0+ Setsyven s | -

0%~ 0120 | 5579376 X

_ DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED

: L

Zilee #/oors

}%ﬂas

I S p— #/007’5_; L ares

;Q_QZE@HPA/ Kiehernn Greas,
: ) Ve -

e Dloning clesldop_phones, (omputer Streens .

g TITRRSTIIT Y

\QCKNI)
!l—-’-/

R ey, L s ity oy vt n L ek

TTRTYAT T AT ;,U}‘»‘iw

4; Sl 1S9

[
} [PEAE VR RS 1 L ..o+ IR
i
f

2 (AL zﬁ,n;rm m‘ 1%6 i

' \/fzf}mam Dr

e e

3

\.

vy

All Material Is guaranteed to be as-specifled, and the above work was performed in accordance with the drawings and specifications provided for the -

above work and was completed In a substantial woerkmanlike manner for the agreed sum of

Dollars ($ 756 -45 }

hisisa EIFartlai @i@xce due and payable by: __- (9(% OG{ az ag a

Mook Day Year
{n accordance \&l{h our MJAgreement [ JProposal - No. jg é’ #Q Dated om ﬁ;{ O [ r}% D"ZO
B ear

D
&ﬂd&ms TC8122 4

1112

I
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\\..L

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI
-DECLARTING SURPLUS PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the City of Southaven (“City”) 1is presently in
possession o©of the multiple <chairs and tables which were
previcusly located in the City Beocardrcom and located at City
Hall and as more specifically set forth in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Mississippi Code 17-25-25, it has been
recommended by the City Clerk to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
that the chairs and tables be surplused pursuant to Miss. Cocde
17-25-25, and removed from the fixed assets inventory; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen are desirous of
disposing of the chairs and tables and amending its fixed assets
inventory pursuant fo State guidelines; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the Mayor and Board of

Aldermen of the City cof Southaven, Mississippi as follows, to
wit: .

1. The chairs and tables be hereby declared as surplus
property.

2. The City Clerk, or her designee, 1s hereby authorized
and directed to follow Mississippi Code 17-25-25 for the
disposition of the furniture.

Motion was made by Alderman Fayne and seconded by Alderman
Hoots for the adoption «¢f the above and foregoing
Resolution, and the gquesticn being put tec a roll call wvote,
‘the result was as follows:

Alderman Brooks YES
Alderman Kelly YES
Alderman Hoots YES
Alderman Payne YES
Alderman Gallagher | YES
Alderman Wheeler YES
Alderman Flores YES

RESOLVED BND DONE, this 21st day of April, 2020.
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Darren Musselwhite, MAYOR
!

i ﬂriﬂiﬁ{Y\lllﬁﬁﬂ\)

IITY CLERK
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City of Soui:ﬁaveﬂ |

"Top of Mississippi”

Andrea Mullen, City Clerk
8710 NORTHWEST LBIRIVE
SOUTHAVEN, MS 38671

www.southaven.arg

PHONE 662-280-2489
FAX 662-280-6556
amuliien@souihaven.org

April 20, 2020

Mayor and Board of Alderman,

I respectfully request permission to surplus the items listed below in accordance with state law,
and remove the items from the fixed assets inventory. These items were located in the '
boardroom at City Hall prior to the new renovations. The furniture has exceeded its useful life
and 1 recommend listing the items on Gov Deals.

74 Maroon Cloth Connecting Chairs
4 Arm Chairs

5 Rolling Desk Chairs

1 36x72 light wood conference table
1 48x78 dark wood conference table

Thank you,

Andrea Mullen
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|

E[&N ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
SOUTHAVEN MISSISSIPPI REGULATING THE LOCATION AND PLACEMENT
FOR SALE OR OTHERWISE OF AUTOMOBILES, TRUCKS, RECREATIONAL
E(iISICLES MOTORCYCLES, FOUR WHEELERS, BOATS, TRAILERS, JET SKIS
ALL OTHER KINDS OF VEHICLES WITHIN THE CITY OF SOUTHAVEN

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen (the "Board") of the City of
pouthaven, Mississippi (the "City"):

WHEREAS, the use of streets, curbs, vacant lots and other sites on both public and
private properties within the City for the parking, display and sale of automobiles, trucks,
éecreationai vehicles, motorcycles, four wheelers, trailers, jet skis and other kinds of vehicles
"Vehicles") by transient vendors and others is, on occasion, unsightly, impedes traffic and has a
etrimental effect on the appearance and atmosphere of the City and its neighborhoods; and

WHEREAS, it has become necessary for the Board to regulate and control the use of
> eets, curbs, vacant lots and other properties for such purposes in order to preserve the
dppearance and atmosphere of the City and its neighborhoods, and to promote the orderly
conduct of commerce within the City; and

WHEREAS, the authority to enact such regulations to regulate and control the use of
such properties for such purposes is vested in the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of
Southaven by Sections 21-17-5, 21-19-31, 21-19-35, 21-37-3, and 63-3-211 of the Mississippi
Code of 1972, as amended; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of
the City of Southaven, Mississippi as follows, to-wit:

1. No person, corporation, company, association or other entity shall display, show
o offer for sale, or allow, permit or suffer the display, show or offer for sale of Vehicles on any
s,ztreet curb, lot or other property, however zoned, located within the City unless the City has
issued a privilege license for the sale of such Vehicles on such specific location or property.

2. The display of Vehicles for sale in areas allowed by this ordinance shall not
iolate off-street parking requirements and shall not occupy or take up required parking spaces in
sommercial areas of the City.

|

e

3. No Vehicle, whether offered for sale or not, shall be parked or displayed in the
ard or lawn of a residential dwelling place in the City.

L)

4. This ordinance shall not prohibit:

(a) the sale of a single privately owned, properly licensed Vehicle by the owner from the
drive of the owner’s private residence;

(b) the placement of a “For Sale” sign in the window of a single, privately owned,
roperly licensed Vehicle by the owner while the Vehicle is being driven and parked in the City

=t
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in the usual and normal course of use of the Vehicle by the owner, so long as the Vehicle does
not remain parked in a public parking place overnight.

5. For each violation of this ordinance the violator may be fined in an amount not
exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) or imprisoned for a term not exceeding thirty (30)
days. Each day during which the offending party remains in breach of this ordinance shall
constitute a separate violation hereof. '

6. Violators shall include both the owners of Vehicles parked or displayed as
prohibited hereby and the owners of private property who allow Vehicles to be so parked or
displayed on their property.

7. This ordinance shall be enforced by the City Police Department, and the City
Municipal Court shall have jurisdiction of all cases arising hereunder.

8. Any Vehicle which has not been moved from a public street, curb or other public
property after five days from the date of service of a citation of violation of this ordinance on the
owner, or which has been left unattended on a public street or other public property for more
than five days, shall be towed and stored at the expense of the owner. If such Vehicle is not
reclaimed within the time set by Section 63-23-3(b), Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, for
reclamation of an abandoned vehicle, it shall be sold as provided by statute.

9. Passage of this Ordinance is now official, and the same shall take effect one
month from this date. The City Clerk shall cause this Ordinance to be advertised as provided by
law.

The foregoing Ordinance was discussed and voted upon in a public meeting, and whereas
a motion was made by Aldermen Flores to adopt the Ordinance, and said motion was seconded
by Aldermen Gallagher with the vote thereon having the following results:

Alderman William Brooks Voted: YES
Alderman Kristian Kelly Voted: YES
Alderman Charlie Hootg Voted: YES
Alderman George Payne Voted: YES
Alderman Joel Gallagher Voted: YES
Alderman John Wheeler Voted: YES
Alderman Raymond Flores Voted: YES

The foregoing Ordinance was passed, adopted proved on da/y?& )
2020.
Z 7 Lz ;

MAYOR DARREN MUSSELWHITE

ANDREA MULLEN, CITY CLERK

TEST:
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RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN

)F THE CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI GRANTING CONDITIONAL

ISE PERMIT TO SAMUEL COVINGTON FOR MOTOR VEHICLE REPAIR

SHOP LOCATED ON SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SOUTHVIEW STREET
AND TOWN AND COUNTRY DRIVE IN SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

.. A~

WHEREAS, the City of Southaven’s (“City”) Planning Commission previously held a
hearing on March 30, 2020 for the conditional use permit (“permit™) application of Samuel
Covington (the “Applicant™) for a motor vehicle repair shop located on Southwest Corner of
Southview Street and Town and County Drive in Southaven, Mississippi; and

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances define a “Motor Vehicle Service and Repair”
and set forth the requirements as provided in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, “Conditional Use” is defined in the City Code of Ordinances at Title XTII,
(hapter 1, Section 13-1(b) as “a use that would not be appropriate generally or without
restrictions throughout the zoning district but which, if controlled as to number, area, location or
T
C

clation to the neighborhood, would promote the public health, safety, morals, order, comfort,
bnivenience, appearance, prosperity or general welfare;” and

WHEREAS, the Laws of the State of Mississippi, Section 17-1-1 to 17-1-27, inclusive,
f-the Mississippi Code of 1972, annotated, as amended, empower the City to enact a Zoning
rdinance and to provide for its administration, enforcement and amendment; and

P W o)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Mississippi Code Amnn. Sections 21-17-5, the City has the
authority to adopt ordinances with respect to City property including the adoption of all lawful
arders, resolutions or ordinances with respect to municipal affairs, property, and finances, and to
alter, modify, and repeal such orders, resolutions or ordinances; and

WHEREAS, based on findings of the City Planning Commission at the hearing and City
ode of Ordinances and City Staff Report as further set forth in Exhibit A to this Resolution, the
ity’s Planning Commission recommends, subject to the City Board’s revocation and the
pplicant adhering to all requests and stipulations in the City Staff Report, a conditional use
ermit with one year extensions at the discretion of the City Board of Aldermen, pursuant to its
1scretion as set forth in the City Code of Ordinances at Title XIII, Chapter 9, Section 13-9(a);
nd :

[ T o O ot T Y o, S e

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the Mayor and Board of
Aldermen of the City of Southaven, Mississippi as follows, to wit:

1. Subject to the Board’s revocation for violation of the permit or ordinances, the City
Board grants a permit to the Applicant for motor vehicle repair shop located on
Southwest Corner of Southview Street and Town and County Drive, specifically, 905
Town and Country Drive, Suite F, Southaven, Mississippi for one (1) year to be renewed
annually at the discretion of the City Board of Aldermen and subject to the City Board’s
revocation.




Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, Mississippi

2. The Mayor and City Planning Director or their designee are authorized to take any and all
action to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

Following the reading of this Resolution, it was introduced by Alderman Hoots
and seconded by Payne. The Resolution was then put to a roll call vote and the
results were as follows, to-wit:

Alderman Brooks YES
Alderman Kelly YES
Alderman Hoots YES
Alderman Payne YES
Alderman Gallagher YES
Alderman Wheeler YES
Alderman Flores YES

Having received a majority of affirmative votes, the Mayor declared that the Resolution
was carried and adopted as set forth above on this the 21 day of April, 2020.

CITY OF SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

oD B

LDARREN MUSSELWHITE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Qjmbﬁﬂ'i MPMJ

CITY CLERK
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City of Southaven
Office of Planning and Development
Conditional Permit Use Staff Report

City of Southaven City Hall
Executive Board Room
8710 Northwest Drive
Date of Hearing: March 30, 2020
Public Hearing Body: Planning Commission
Applicant Samuel Covington
2710 Southbridge
Horn Lake, MS
. 662-255-5523
Total Acreage NA
Existing Zoning: General Commercial (C-3)
Location of Conditional Use Southwest corner of Southview Street and
application: Town & Country Drive
Request for CUP:
Allowance for a motor vehicle repair shop to be located at 905 Town & Country Drive
Suite F
Comprehensive Plan Designation: | Commercial

Per Code:

“Motor vehicle service and repair. Salvage or junk, and any major repair or storage
of equipment or materials or damaged vehicles shall be completely concealed from
surrounding properties and no more than five (5) non-compliant vehicles shall be
stored on the property at any one (1) time. Fences utilized for this purposed shall be
solid and of uniform construction and color and of sufficient height to completely
conceal the vehicles. Three (3) non-compliant vehicles may be stored on the property
without being concealed for a period not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days.”

Staff Comments:
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The site is an existing multi bay building with overhead rollup doors at the west end
where there was a previous motor vehicle repair shop. The applicant is proposing to
locate in this same bay area which was designed for this type of use. The bays
incorporate the proper drainage for the site, are designed as drive in bays and have all
storage of materials on the interior of the site or behind a fenced in area on site.

Staff Recommendation:

Per the code of ordinances, any motor vehicle repair in commercial zones must be
approved via a conditional use permit which allows the city to annually inspect the site
to renew or revoke the use. Since this site was previously a motor vehicle repair shop
and has been designed to conform with the use requirements, staff sees no problem in
approving the use again. Staff recommends a conditional use permit for a period of
one (1) year with a four (4) year extension to be renewed annually.

Planning Commission Motion made by:
Recommendation: | Seconded by:
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Office of Planning and Development
PUD Staff Report |

City of Southaven City Hall
Executive Board Room

application:

8710 Northwest Drive
Date of Hearing: March 30, 2020
Public Hearing Body: Planning Commission
Applicant: Jeffery Pelts
593 Duck Call Cove
Cordova, TN 38018
901-606-5300
Total Acreage 6.3 acres
Existing Zoning: General Commercial (C-3)
Location of PUD Amendment North of Stateline Road, west of Airways
Bivd

Surrounding property zoning:

North: TN Stateline Distribution .
South: Commercial C-store/Retail
East: PBP Distribution
West: Commercial Retail

Staff Comments:

The applicant is requesting to rezone 6.3 acres of property on the north side of Stateline
Road, west of Airways from General Commercial (C-3) to Planned Unit Development.
The applicant is proposing to split the site into 3 lots, two of which will be along the
Stateline Road frontage and are proposed to keep the C-3 uses allowed via the ordinance.
The remaining 5.4 acres is the vacant property wrapping around the existing C-store with
linear frontage on Airways Blvd. The applicant is proposing to use this lot for an RV
park with rental cabins on site, a rental office and amenities normally associated with an
RV park. The applicant has submitted a site plan with the RV park and cabin concept

which shows a single point of access onto Airways Blvd. with the check in office and
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amenities on the north side of the drive. The amenities are shown to include a pavilion,
pool and playground area. The cabins are shown on the south side of the drive. There is
a sight proof fence shown around the entire perimeter of the park. The two commercial
lots along Stateline Road both show 0.44/0.45 acres with a shared ingress/egress in
between the two.

Comprehensive Plan Designation: | Medium Density Residential

Staff Comments:

The submitted documentation requesting the commercial and RV zoning is acceptable to
staff. Lots 2 and 3 would essentially have the same zoning as they have now. The 5.4
acres behind these lots is the only area requesting a true change in use. Since the
development of and RV park can be considered a commercial type and it is also
surrounded by nonresidential establishments staff has determined that this type of use
would not negatively affect the surrounding areas. The RV park layout concept will
need to be addressed in detail during the site plan phase of this development pending
approval. As discussed with the applicant, there may be a need for a secondary
emergency access into the RV park which should be discussed with the fire marshal.

Staff has no further comments and recommends approval as submitted.

Planning Commission Motion made by:
Recommendation: Seconded by:
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Boulev:

the R,V

Text

Main Street RV Park (P.U.D.)

This development (complex) will be an infill project located at the Northwest Corner of Airways

rd and Stateline Road (Main Street) wrapping around an existing convenience store with fuel

dispensers. The complex is 6.30 acres in size, more than the required 5 acres minimum. The
property will be subdivided into 3 lots:
Lot 1—-5.41 acres
Lot 2 —0.44 acres
Lot 3 —0.45 acres
1. The permitted uses for each Parcel are as follows:
Lot 1
a. R.V.Park
b. Rental Cabins ‘
c. assogiated buildings, propane dispenser, maintenance building and office/retail stores normal to a
R.V. Park
Lot 2.3

_..a. any germitted use listed in Chart 4, Commercial Districts for a C~3 District
2. Population Densities

~8ince this is a Commercial PUD and not having any permanent residents the overall density is not
applicable.
3. Primary Circulation Pattern
Lot 1 has its only access by Airways Boulevard. The nature of a R.V. Park requires egress and
ingressiat a single access to a public road to control who enters and leaves the R.V. Park. Safety for
the users of the R.V. Park dictates this requirement as well since “Quiet Time” can be enforced and
unnecessary traffic into the Park can be controlled. Internal traffic flow is generally one-way. (See
Outline{Plan)
Lots 2,3 are proposed to share a drive as shown on the Outline Plan. This shared drive will be in
excess of 350 feet from Airways Boulevard.
4. Proposed Parks and Playgrounds
Since this is basically a Commercial PUD with no permanent residents, no public parks will be
required. However, it is anticipated that some patrons of the R.V. Park will consist of players and
families| utilizing the City's Park facilities, the developer is willing to pay a modified Park fee. Users of

Park will have use of on-site playgrounds and a swimming pool. (See Outline Plan)
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5. Phases of Development

l.ot 1, the R.V. Park, will be constructed all at once and should be completed by the fail sports

season. Lots 2 and 3 will be for sale and their improvement completions will be determined by the

buyers of the lots.

5. Relation to the Comprehensive Plans and Surrounding Land Uses

The existing zoning for this property is C—3 General Commercial District. This district is for the older

part of the City and is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plans as Commercial uses are
recommended for this area. The properties to the East, South and North are Zoned C-3 also. A

PUD Zoning is on the West side. The lands on the North, West and South are undeveloped. There is

an existing R.V. Park just fo the West of this tract and is at full capacity most of the time.

6. Traffic Volume

R.V. Parks are low vehicle traffic generators. A reasonable estimate would be 3.5 trips generated per

pad per day or 150. Since both Airways Boulevard and Stateline Road are 5 lane major thorofarg
this amount of trips per day will not affect the capacity of either streets.

i

7. Operation of the R.V. Park

One of the fastest growing markets in the United States is Recreational Vehicle sales and travel
market. It is no longer considered a market for older, retired couples. The average age of a R.V

owner is dropping as the number of participants are increasing. Modern R.V. Parks are commamdmg
higher pad renfal fees as the average cost of a R.V. unit is increasing. The success of a R.V. Park is

depended on location, accessibility, cleanness, rate structure and management. Visitors of a R. V
Park are usually avid social media users and will quickly report problems with the cleanness ands

management of a Park. It is imperative that a successful Park develop strict rules governing theiuse

of the Park by users.

The major concerns by public governing bodies is that the Park will become a place for full-time
RVers. The Audubon R.V. Park in Horn Lake is a prime example of a well-managed Park. Strict
rules are enforced and the Park is always clean.

[t can be expected that only a few of the pads will be reserved for overnighters. Most pads will be

occupied by people staying several days up to a month or more. As long as the Park is well

managed, there will be no problem with customers staying a month or more on the same pad. Allot

of the customers for the pads and cabins will be construction workers staying for the duration of a

project which maybe months. Requiring a customer to move off a pad after a short stay to anothﬂer IS

unnecessary and is hard for the City to enforce. The cabins will be normally rented by the montij
Good management will mean no problems. The developer will construct the Park but will probab
sell it to a National Franchise.

8. Conclusion

The R.V. Park should be a welcomed alternate source for accommodating overnight visitors to the

City. RVers are normally quiet and mature, they spend a lot of money at local businesses. They
have a nearly zero impact on local schools, traffic, crime or other City amenities.

y

S
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MAIN STREET RV PARK

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

SOUTHAVEN, MISSISSIPPI

IPD, LLC
BEN SMITH P.E., R.L.S.
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NCORPORATED

'www.]'ondonfaggers,com
.INSECT CONTROL EQUIPMENT USED
EVERYWHERE N THE WGRLD

MANUFACTURERS AND EXPORTERS SINCE 1968

Aprit 15, 2020

To Whom It May Concern:

-This letter is to certify that VESERIS has been appointed as the sole exclusive
distributor for all truck mounted models of London Fog equipment for in the -
State of Mississippi, U.S.A.

VESERIS has the authority to sell and promote all London Fog models and can
pravide any training and after sales service needed.

Sincerely yo

Chris Norgren
President
Landon Fog, Inc.

505 Brimhall Ave. » RO, Box 406 » Long Lake, Minnesota USA 55356

PHONE:; (952) 473-5366 = FAX: (952) 473-5302 = Order Hotline: (800) 448-8525
E-mall; salessupport@iondonfoggers.com ¢ Web Site: www.londonfoggers.com
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Univar Environmental Sclences

Ty | O Univar

Kelth.Haas@unlvarsolutlons.com ENVIRO N MENTA L
WWW UNIVares. com S(:' [ENCES
February 21, 2020

Subject: Price quote Public Health

For: City of Southaven, 5813 Pepper Chase Drive, Southaven, MS 38671
Robert Booth, emall: Rbaoth@southaven.org , phone: 901.413.4629
Partner iD; 642100

Thank you for your time to discuss how Univar Environmental Sciences can assist the City of Southaven,
The item listed is the same as the London Fog 18-20 purchased in 2016. The price is good until Jan 1,
2021. Price does not include shipping. As a Univar Public Heaith Partner equipment calibration and
droplet sizing are included.

Product Product

Description: code: Cost/unit: | Qty: Cost:
London Fog 654684 $10,705.17 | 1 $10,705.17
Model 18-20 then 1143
Total Cost: $10,705.17

Bret and | look forward to serving your public health needs.

1. Bret Gagner, Sales Representative, Mississippi p: 205.305.5196
2. Keith Haas, Public Health Specialist, p: 713.203.0436

Thank you,

Keith L. Haas, BCE
Public Health Specialist
Univar Envirecnmental Sciences
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The City of Southaven Docket Recap

April 21, 2020

General Fund
Balance Sheet
Mavyor Admin
Board of Aldermen
Arts And Cultural Affairs
Court
Finance & Administration
Information Technology
City Clerk
Operations Department
Pfanning & Engineering
Police
Fire
Fire Prevention
EMS
Public Works
Streets
Parks
Park Tournaments
Code Enforcement
City Fuel
Expense Accounts
Administrative Expenses
Litigation
Liability Insurance
Professional Dues

Bond Funded CAP Proj
Tourist & Convention
Debt Service

Utility Fund
Sanitation Fund
Payrol! Fund

DOCKET TOTAL

922.21
2544

210.00

586.97
297.25
6,071.64
2,443.07
3,995.61
69,921.64
14,346.76
46,884.34
16,173.11
5,340.52
21,044.84
297.00
5,806.20

366,351.57

23,889.00

17,499.92

602,107.09

15,627.50
33,355.41
13,698.70
132,823.86
51,120.36
361,721.69

1,210,454.61
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DESCRIPTION

CITY OF SQUTHAVEN
FY20 CLAIMS DOCKET C-042120

04/16/2020 15:36
1540ppyle

CHECK

WARRANT

YEAR/PR TYP 8

VOUCHER PO

2020/1 TO 2020/7
DOCUMENT

YEAR/PERIOD
ACCOUNT/VENDOR

DEBT SVC EXPENSES

701
701

GMS #50618 MAY 2020

6,598,.70 C-042120

7 INV A

FIRE TRUCK NOTE PAYMENT
2020
GMS #50618 MAY 2020 LOAN PAYMENT

0

339366

FULL DESC:

492020

626705
000848 MS DEVELOPMENT AUTHO 492020

INVOICE

6,598.70

ACCQUNT TOTAL

#82-0052-01-7-RE¥F B

7,100.00 C-042120

7 INV A

GEN OB INTEREST
2020

0
#82-0052-01-7-REF BOND 2009

339747
FULL DESC

3312020

3312020

650401
003341 BANCORPSOUTH
INVOICE:

701

7,100.00

TOTAL

ACCOUNT

13,698.70

TOTAL

ORG 701
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Minutes, City of Southaven, Southaven, M

04/18§/2020 14:023 CITY OF SOUTHAVEN P 3
1540ppyle FY¥20 CLAIMS DOCKET W-042120 apinvgla
YEAR/PERIOD: 2020/1 TO 2020/7
ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT VOUCHER PO YEAR/PR TYP 5 WARRANT CHECK DESCRIPTION
0600 PAYROLI, FUND
0600 214300 EMPLOYEE MEDICAL INSURANCE
031228 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INC 645141119365 339298 0 2020 7 DIR P 319,248.37 W-042120 53570 APRIL 2020 PAYROLL
INVOICKE: 64914111936A5 FULL DESC: APRIL 2020 PAYROLL, CONTRIEUTIONS
ACCOUNT TOTAL 319,248.37
0600 214900 DEFERRED COMPENSATION
002311 EMPOWER RETIREMENT 823808671 339311 0 2020 7 DIR P 9,359,966 W-042120 53571 APRIL 3,2020 PAYROL
INVOICE: 82380871 FULL DESC: APRIL 3,2020 PAYROLL CONTRIBUTION REF#823808671
ACCOUNT TOTAL 9,359,986
0600 215101 CAF-PRETAX MEDICATL
022644 CORPORATE PLANNING 4-16-2020 339746 0 2020 7 DIR P 6,939.88 W-042120 53574 RPRIL 17, 2020 FSA/
INVOICE: FULL DESC: APRIL 17, 2020 me\UO PAYROLL CONTRIBUTION
ACCOUNT TOTAL 6,939.88
0600 215102 DENTAL INSURANCE PREMS
031228 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INC 649141119365 339298 0 2020 7 DIR P 14,708.84 W-042120 53570 APRIL 2020 PAYROLL
INVOICE: 649141119365 FULL DESC: APRIL 2020 PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS
ACCOUNT 'TOTAL 14,708.84
Q600 215105 VISTON
031228 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INC 6491411139365 339298 0] 2020 7 DIR P 3,262.67 W-042120 53570 APRIL 2020 PAYROLL
INVOTICE: 649141119365 FULL DESC: APRIL 2020 PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS
ACCOUNT TOTAL 3,262.67
ORG 0600 TOTAL 353,519.72
e ot e e L DD _0600 PAYROLL PUND O AL o 30 i a D T e o e £ e e
** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pam Pyle **
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